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UST COMPARATIVE HIGHLIGHTS

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

For the year ended December 31 2001 2000 % Change
Financial Results
Net sales $1,670,315 $1,547,644 7.9
Operating income 833,028 752,723 10.7
EBITDA"™ 876,224 792,326 10.6
Net earnings 491,602 441,886 11.3
Basic earnings per share 2.99 2.71 10.3
Diluted earnings per share 2.97 2.70 10.0
Dividends per share 1.84 1.76 4.5
Measurements
Return on net sales 29.4% 28.6%
Return on average assets 28.9% 33.2%
Dividends paid as a percentage of net earnings 61.7% 65.0%
Return on average stockholders’ equity 115.4% 187.5%
Other Data
Average number of shares (in thousands):
Basic 164,250 163,181
Diluted 165,682 163,506
Number of stockholders of record at year-end 7,816 8,040
Average number of employees 4,691 4,855

(1) Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. EBITDA should be considered in addition to operating income, net earnings, cash flows

and other measures of financial performance in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

TEN-YEAR GRAPHIC HIGHLIGHTS

Net Sales Net Earnings

dollars in millions dollars in millions

i1/
V,F;:QE:‘

1,306 |
2
1.423]

1,204

132]
1.09%]
03]

92 93 94 95 96 97 98 99 00 01 92

93

@]

g

ZZ0)

&R
&% |

— %]
22|

-3B8]

R ERN RN
94 95 96 97 98 99 00 01

Diluted Earnings/

Dividends Per Share
dollars

20 |
237 |
25 |

98)
2.17]

58]
kY
N

\

JUUUuUL

92 93 94 95 96 97 98

=—= Dividends

a9

HEEEE

99 00 01




FELTOW STOCKHOL DERS:

| am extremely pleased to report that 2001 was a year of solid accomplishment for UST as
we successfully completed the first year of our five-year strategic growth plans. It was a
year of clear management focus, renewed employee energy and undiminished commit-
ment to our great brands. We demonstrated through strong financial results that we are
building a platform that will sustain growth and enhance stockholder value going forward.

The record results beat even our own high expectations.

o Net sales increased 8 percent to $1.7 billion
o Net earnings increased 11 percent to $492 million
o Diluted earnings per share were up 10 percent to $2.97

What a difference a year has made.

From an operational standpoint, we put the Conwood antitrust judgment behind us in 2001, a position that
was validated by Standard & Poor’s and Fitch. S&P upgraded our ratings close tc the levels prior to the
Conwood judgment. Fitch affirmed these higher ratings for our credit facility and debt. Fitch noted that
given UST's “strong financial profile and high level of cash flow,” the Company would maintain its strong
credit rating profile even if the Conwood judgment were upheld. Oral argument in the case was heard in
late November in the Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals and we expect a decision later this year. We have
always maintained that the Conwood verdict is wrong and remain cenfident that we will eventually prevail
on the merits of our appeal.

Although we are currently precluded from repurchasing shares, we remain committed to enhancing
stockholder value through such a program once the case is resolved.

BUILDING MAMAGEMENT AND BCARD STRENGTH

In their first full year in their positions, Murray S. Kessler, president of our smokeless tobacco
subsidiary, and Theodor P. Baseler, president of our wine subsidiary, led re-energized management
teams that successfully focused on improving business fundamentals while driving aggressive strategic
growth plans.

At U.S. Smokeless Tobacco Company, we put in place a realigned sales and marketing organization that
is committed to further enhancing the partnership we enjoy with our distributors and retailers. We atso
reconfigured our manufacturing and science & technology operations to help us meet our goals of
maximizing our capability to meet emerging adult consumer demand with innovative new products,
while growing our core brands and protecting their equity through high standards of quality assurance and
customer service. These new organizations helped deliver improved results and paosition us for an even
better future.

At Stimson Lane, the management team focused on accelerating growth in operating profit while improv-
ing return on assets. Stimson Lane premium wines continue to gather critical acclaim, testimony to the
organization’s commitment to quality and value.

In December we welcomed Patricia Diaz Dennis to our Board of Directors. A senior executive at SBC
Communications Inc., Patricia was appointed by two U.S. Presidents and confirmed by the Senate to three
federal government positions. She brings to our Board a valuable combination of business and public
sector experience at a time when perspectives regarding smokeless tobacco are evolving.




Vincent A, Gierer, Jr.
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President

SMOKELESS TOBACCO

A year ago we changed the name of our smokeless tobacco subsidiary to U.S. Smokeless Tobacco
Company to represent more accurately who we are. We are the world’s leading manufacturer and
marketer of moist smokeless tobacco products. The name change signifies our distinct difference in the
tobacco industry and aligns with our vision: “Our smoke-free products will be recognized by adults as the
preferred way to experience tobacco satisfaction.”

In 2001, net sales increased 8 percent to $1.45 billion while operating profit increased 8.4 percent to
$833.2 million on a net can sales improvement of 2.5 percent. Since the full-year results reflect an extra
shipping day over the previous year, on an equivalent shipping day basis, net sales would have increased
5.9 percent while operating profit would have increased 5.5 percent on a net can sales improvement of 0.6
percent. Underlying operations continued to show improvement in spite of some issues in the second half
of the year, including a large excise tax increase in California, which was subsequently repealed.

The continuing story in smokeless tobacco is category growth. In fact, the category has been growing for
more than 20 years, as adults seek socially acceptable options to smoking. With the two best-selling
brands of moist smokeless tobacco in the market - Copenhagen and Skoal - each with more than
$1 billion in sales at retail, we are uniquely positioned to benefit from this opportunity. Every 1 percent of
adult smokers who convert to moist smokeless tobacco represents a 10 percent increase in the segment’s
adult consumer base.

Since 1995, the segment has grown 12 percent, while cigarette unit volume has declined more than
15 percent during the same period in the United States. [t is estimated that more than 2 miilion adult
smokers have switched to smokeless tobacco. We fully expect this trend to continue as adult consumers
seek options to smoking and choose to make smokeless tobacco a part of their lifestyle.

On February 5, 2002, U.S. Smokeless Tobacco Company, as a distinctly different tobacco company, asked the
Federal Trade Commission for an advisory opinion regarding the acceptability of communicating in adver-
tising to adult smokers that smokeless tobacco products are considered to be a significantly reduced risk
alternative as compared to cigarette smoking. Under federal law, the FTC has jurisdiction over tobacco product
advertising. An advisory opinion would give us guidance as to what the FTC considers appropriate before
running such advertisements. A full discussion of this truly important development can be found on Page 5.

WINE

The super premium wine category in which Stimson Lane competes grew at about 7 percent in 2001, and
demographic trends in the American population favor continued growth. Stimson Lane wines demon-
strated robust growth within the segment, with our Columbia Crest brand registering a 14 percent
increase in case sales and our Chateau Ste. Michelle label showing a ¢ percent improvement for the year.




Stimson Lane's 2001 operating profit of $21.2 million was a 22.1 percent improvement over the previous
year. Net sales for the year increased 8.2 percent to $188.9 million, as total case sales advanced
7.1 percent to 3 million cases. Sales and operating profit were adversely affected by the September 11th
terrorist attack, which resulted in inventory reductions by distributors and an overall weakness in the
hospitality sector.

Critical acclaim drives wine sales and our wines won more praise in 2001 than ever before. Stimson Lane
wines received scores of 90 or better 96 times from the major wine publications, an impressive tally to be
sure. Wine Spectator ranked our Chateau Ste. Michelle Cold Creek Chardonnay as the best white wine in
the world in 2001. And we had two other wines on that highly regarded magazine's annual “Top 100 Most
Exciting Wines” list. For the second year in a row, no other winery has had more wines on this prestigious
list.

These accomptishments bode well for Stimson Lane’s strategic vision: “To be the leader in the super
premium wine segment, to elevate Washington state wines to the quality and prestige of the top wine
regions of the world, and to be known for superior products, innovation and customer focus.”

COMMITTED EMPLOYEES

Without the whole-hearted commitment of our employees, we would not have experienced the success
we have achieved to date. The commitment goes both ways. We invest in programs to help our
employees develop professionally and attain success in their fields as part of the ongoing core
values program we call USTogether. That program will receive renewed emphasis in 2002. When we
help equip our employees to meet the challenges of our businesses head-on, our stockholders are the
ultimate beneficiaries.

Our employees recognize that our stockholders are the true owners of the business and we dedicate our
resources to increasing stockholder value.

DIVIDENDS AND STOCK ACTIVITY

UST paid a dividend of $1.84 per share in 2001, a 4.5 percent increase over the previous year. In December,
the Company announced a 4.3 percent increase in the dividend, with an indicated annual rate of $1.92 a
share, effective in the first quarter of 2002. It is a point of distinction that UST has paid cash dividends
without interruption since 1912 and has raised the dividend every year but one since 1970.

The performance of UST stock in 2001 greatly improved even as the overall market saw technology issues
falter and the effects of the recession became apparent. Equity analysts toock note of the Company's
performance and plans for the future, while coverage in the financial media focused on UST as a
dependable value investment. Barron’s, for example, ranked UST as the best value of the 65 top
performing companies from the Standard & Poor’s 500 index based on profit and dividend growth over the
past 10 years.

STRATEGIC FOCUS

At UST, we remain focused on delivering solid operating performance. In the pages that follow, we
will detait the evolution of the strategic plans we put in place a year ago and look at some of the accom-
plishments of 2001, especially for what they foretell about the future of our Company. We have a focused
commitment to our great products and to further enhancing customer relationships. Because we have
quality brands in growing categories, | am convinced that the best is yet to come.

We are delivering on our strategic plan to grow net earnings by 10 percent on average over five years. The
sales and earnings growth we forecast, combined with our generous dividend and our discount to the
Standard & Poor’s 500, makes UST a compelling value.

Thank you for the confidence you have shown in UST.

Sincerely,

Y 1 M o

Vincent A. Gierer, Jr.
Chairman of the Board
Chief Executive Officer and President

February 21, 2002
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U.S. Smokeless Tobacco Company is a distinctly different tobacco products manufacturer
and marketer. Our points of distinction begin with the exceptional quality of our products,
feature a truly outstanding distribution system and excellent retailer relationships, and
reach the adult smokeless tobacco consumer through strong brand-building activities.
These activities include engaging one-on-one marketing initiatives, high-quality print
advertising and exciting promotional events. We do all of this with an undiminished
commitment to the

o We are building on the popularity of the world's best known brands of moist snuff - Copenhagen and
provisions of the

Skoal - to grow the smokeless tobacco category. Copenhagen and Skoal are mega-brands, each with

Smokeless Tobacco more than $1 billion in sales at retail. By means of comparison, each brand’s retail sales are at a level
Master Settlement comparable to that of Diet Pepsi. Our Red Seal brand, meanwhile, is capturing a growing percentage of
Agreement, and we the price-value segment, while Rooster, our mid-priced product, is showing continuing progress with its
remain firm in our  Unigue positioning.

belief that smoke- Compared with other consumer packaged goods categories, smokeless tobacco sales at retail in 2001
less tobacco should were up 6.4 percent on a year-over-year basis, while confectionery products increased 5 percent and car-

be for adults only. bonated beverages experienced a 4.4 percent improvement.

IMPROVING THE VALUE EQUATION = GROWING THE CATEGORY

By focusing on brand building through a combination of product improvements, line extensions, increased
advertising support and promotional strategies, we continue to improve value for the adult consumer.

In 2001, our commitment to brand building was evident in the national introduction of Copenhagen Black,
a bourbon-flavored mid-cut product, Rooster Wild Berry and Red Seal Long Cut Straight. The correctness
of the Skoal Long Cut value conversion was borne out as we lapped the conversion date in the first quar-
ter and adult consumers responded favorably to the larger can size, as well as to increased marketing and
brand-building initiatives for the entire Skoal line. In 2002, we plan to continue making improvements
to our existing brands, as well as introducing innovative products to meet the growing demands of our
adult consumers.

No consumer products company is more effective at one-to-one brand building than U.S. Smokeless
Tobacco Company. In the course of a year, we hand out more than 5 million samples or free product
coupons in special adults-only facilities at more than 4,000 events nationwide. We now have three
exciting interactive adults-only mobile marketing units on the road traveling the country. Our newest, the
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U.S. Smokeless Tobacco Company hands out samples and coupons to adults at more than 4,000 events each year.

U.S. Smokeless Tobacco Company Western Legends Tour, creates an atmosphere rich in Western
imagery, artifacts and memorabilia. It joins the U.S. Smokeless Tobacco Company Motor Sports
Experience Tour, which tours the NASCAR circuit, and our original rig that travels on the National Hot
Rod Association drag racing circuit along with the two-car Skoal-sponsored funny car team of the
legendary Don Prudhomme.

We almost doubled our print advertising spending last year and, through strategic media buying, more
than tripled our advertising impressions in magazines. The Copenhagen series of ads continue to feature
Western imagery with the tagline “Fresh Cope. It Satisfies.” The entirely new "A Pinch Better” campaign
debuted for Skoal featuring new action photography that demonstrates how being a little better in
everything you do can add up to a whole lot more.

With a solid strategic plan in place, our sales organization has been reconfigured to accelerate growth.
We have added talent to our dedicated trade and category development departments to suppert our
national sales force through a proactive brand-building partnership with retailers we call "STEPS to
Maximum Profit.” Our sales force calls on more than 91,000 stores during a four-week cycle. They use the
industry’s best technology to record sales data at each retail site and are trained to use this
information to help our retail partners make informed business decisions. We also have introduced “top-
to-top™ meetings with our major distributors and retail partners to help them maximize their profit in the
smokeless tobacco category.

Our sales force relies on our Retail Activity Data system that tracks shipments from wholesale to retail to
provide detailed information to identify sales opportunities, optimize call routing, and benchmark sales
and marketing programs down to the individual store level.

BREAKING DOWN THE BARRIERS

In order to grow the category, we continue to concentrate on building category awareness, increasing the
social acceptability of smokeless tobacco products, and improving the ease of use for adult consumers.

In 2002, we will focus on improving our moist smokeless tobacco pouches, a goal we believe is crucial to
gaining greater acceptance by adult smokers seeking an option to cigarettes. Such has been the case in
Sweden, the nation with the highest adult per capita moist smokeless tobacco consumption in the world.
Because no one is better positioned to meet this challenge than U.S. Smokeless Tobacco Company, we
will launch two initiatives involving moist smokeless tobacco pouches later in the year.




Our national sales force is supported with a proactive brand-building partnership with retailers.

NEXT-GENERATION PRODUCTS

Introduced through test markets in Youngstown, Ohio, and Topeka, Kansas, in the fall of 2001, Revel is a
blend of premium tobaccos and fresh mint flavor in clean and neat, discreet, easy-to-use packs. Most
adults who have tried Revel report no need to expectorate. Revel is a next-generation product, down to its
specially designed "Push-N-Flip” container, and is priced competitively with premium cigarettes.

Our research shows that about half of the nation’s 46 million adult smokers are interested in a socially
acceptable option to cigarettes when they are not able to smoke. With a current base of approximately 5
million adult consumers, this represents a tremendous opportunity to significantly grow the smokeless
tobacco category. As the most thoroughly researched product we have ever brought to market, Revel has
tremendous potential to change the way adult smokers think about smokeless tobacco. Importantly,
about half of both adult male and female smokers who tried Revel said they would definitely or probably
buy it.
EFFECTIVE RESOURCE ALLOCATION

We remain committed to allocating resources to the right objectives. Where we see opportunities for cost
savings, we will reallocate funds to improve product support, increase advertising and enhance
promotions - all in ways that enhance category growth. For example, by reconfiguring our promotional
strategy to reduce significantly pre-pack promotions in favor of increased buy-down activity at retail,
profit margins grew by driving increased sales of full-priced premium products.

With an eye toward the best potential return, we have allocated more capital spending to the development
of new products. In 2002, approximately 50 percent of capital spending will be directed to new
products, up from 33 percent in the previous year. Looking to the future, U.S. Smokeless Tobacco Company
has more than a dozen new products in development.

DISTIMCTLY DIFFERENT

As we said at the outset, U.S. Smokeless Tobacco Company is a distinctly different tobacco company.
Our employees have a commitment to quality that is evident in our products. We will continue to introduce
the brand line extensions that our current adult consumers are seeking while we develop next-genera-
tion products that will give adult smokers a socially acceptable option. We have a relationship with our
adult consumers that is unique, as well as a partnership with our distributors and retailers unsurpassed
in the industry.




STIMSON LANE

VINEYARDS & ESTATES

Stimson Lane is the major force behind the already considerable - and still
growing - recognition of the quality of Washington State wines. It's no wonder. Led by our
Chateau Ste. Michelle and Columbia Crest labels, Stimson Lane brings to the retail
marketplace two-thirds of the wines produced in that state. No other wine company in
any of the world’'s major wine producing regions holds such a leadership position.
By means of comparison, Washington State vineyard acreage is now about equal to

tha alifornia’ - . , . . .
tof C nas Quality is the reason for Stimson Lane’s success. In its annual end-of-the-year issue, Wine Spectator

Napa Valley. once again honored Stimsan Lane by selecting three of our wines for the magazine's prestigious list of the
“Top 100 Most Exciting Wines of 2001." For the second year in a row, no other wine company in the world
has had more wines on this list. Further, Chateau Ste. Michelle's 1999 Cold Creek Chardonnay was the
highest rated white wine in the world. Also on the list were the 2000 Eroica, the dry Riesling made by
Chateau Ste. Michelle in partnership with the Dr. Loosen winery in Germany, and the Columbia Crest 1999
Grand Estates Chardonnay.

In total, Stimson Lane wines received ratings of 90 or better 96 times from major wine-rating publications
in 2001. We could not be prouder. We are committed to exceptional quality and value, the combination
required to win the critical acclaim that, in turn, drives sales at retail. It is not just the sophisticated wine
enthusiast who relies on ratings in making purchase decisions. Acclaim helps guide the more typical wine
consumer who, faced with a staggering array of wines on store racks these days, looks to store person-
nel for assistance or even for the helpful point-of-sale rating natice beneath the bottle.

OPERATING PROFIT GCROWTH AND ASSET MANAGEMENT

To achieve our vision, we will concentrate on finding additional operational efficiencies, improving return
on assets and increasing sales. We will continue to improve our top-end quality wines and leverage our
position as Washington State’s leading wine producer.

In 2001, case sales increased by 7 percent in the overall super premium wine segment industrywide. By
comparison, Chateau Ste. Michelle's growth in case sales was up 9 percent, and Columbia Crest grew
14 percent. Through September, shipments of Columbia Crest and Chateau Ste. Michelle were up 19.5
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Stimson Lane wines received ratings of 90 or better 946 times from major wine publications in 2001.

percent and 13.7 percent, respectively. In the fourth quarter, however, the September 11th terrorist
attack had a negative impact on the wine industry, particularly in the restaurant and related
hospitality channels.

Throughout 2001, we were at work implementing our long-range plan to reduce product costs and

eliminate underperforming assets. Cost improvements have been secured for the future in reduced
packaging and grape costs. We anticipate a $12 million annual cost savings by 2005 compared with 2001.

At the end of 2001, the Yakima Malting and Brewing Company was sold since it no tonger fit our
strategic direction.

In addition to reallocating brand spending, divisional expenses were effectively managed. As a result of
increased core product volumes and spending changes, Stimson Lane’s 2001 operating profit increased
22 percent over the prior year.

GOAL: WORLD'S BEST PREMIUM WINE COMPANY

We are well on our way to becoming the world’s best premium wine company. In addition to the
accolades we noted earlier, our highly rated yet reasonably priced Columbia Crest Grand Estates
series Chardonnay, Merlot and Cabernet Sauvignon met with strong consumer approval. The Grand
Estates Chardonnay exceeded our sales projections by 65 percent. We also have broken a key barrier in
restaurant sales, with Chateau Ste. Michelle now one of the top 10 labels served at our nation’s premier
restaurants, according to the annual survey done by Wine and Spirits magazine.

As we accelerate progress toward our goals in 2002, Northstar, our super premium Merlot brand,
represents another promising development. Northstar released the 1998 vintage in the late summer
scoring a 93 rating from Wine Enthusiast and a 92+ from Robert Parker's The Wine Advocate. We are
in the process of building a new winery for Northstar in Walla Walla, Washington, which we hope to have
finished for this year's harvest.

Every employee at Stimson Lane deserves credit for the successes of 2001. Their commitment to
the quality and customer service that helps build premium brands is unsurpassed. They are indeed
leading the way for the growing recognition of the outstanding quality and exceptional value of Washington
State wines.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT
TO THE STOCKHOLDERS OF UST

The consolidated financial statements of UST and other financial information appearing in this report
are the responsibility of the management of the Company. The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and, as such, include
amounts based on judgments and estimates made by management.

The Company maintains a system of internal control which is designed to provide reasonable assur-
ance to the Company’s management and Board of Directors regarding the preparation of reliable
published financial statements.

There are risks and inherent limitations in any system of internal control and accordingly even an
effective internal control system can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial state-
ment preparation.

The internal control system is supported by written policies and procedures, the training and devel-
opment of our employees, appropriate delegation of authority, segregation of responsibilities and ongo-
ing monitoring procedures to ensure the reliability of financial statement reporting. Further, our internal
audit function, which reports directly to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, reviews, evalu-
ates and reports on the operation of related internal control systems. The Audit Committee oversees the
Company’s financial reporting process and discusses with the internal auditors and independent audi-
tors the results of their audits, their assessment of internal controls, and the overall quality of the
Company’s financial reporting. The Report of the Audit Committee appears on page 41.

The Company’s independent auditors provide an objective assessment of management’s fulfillment
of its responsibilities for fairness of financial reporting. They evaluate the system of internal control and
perform such tests and other procedures as they deem necessary to reach and express an opinion on the
financial statements. The Report of the Independent Auditors appears on page 41.

Management believes that as of December 31, 2001, its system of internal control over the financial
reporting process related to the preparation of its financial statements can be relied on.

Vo W i

Vincent A. Gﬁere_r, Jr.
Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Ofﬁcer and President

Robert T. D’Alessandro

Senior Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

February 21, 2002




18

UST MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

2001 2000 1999
Netsales ...ttt e e $1,670,315 $1,547,644 $1,512,331
Net earnings .. ..o oo vttt ittty 491,602 441,886 469,293
Basic earningspershare .......... ...l 2.99 271 2.69
Diluted earnings pershare ...............ccooiiiiiiiiiiii., 2.97 2.70 2.68

20017 compared with 2000 :
Consolidated results showed net sales increasing 7.9 percent to $1.67 billion, net earnings increasing 11.3 percent to $491.6 mil-
lion and diluted earnings per share increasing 10 percent to $2.97.

2001 financial results include the effect of an extra shipping day in the Smokeless Tobacco segment as compared to 2000.
Revenue from the sale of moist smokeless tobacco products is recognized at the time that shipments arrive at the customer’s loca-
tion, which is primarily every Monday. Calendar year 2001 included an extra Monday as compared with 2000. On an equivalent
shipping day basis, net sales, net earnings and diluted earnings per share would have increased 6.2 percent, 8.1 percent and
7 percent, respectively, for the year.

The financial results that the Company achieved in 2001 were in line with our goal set at the end of 2000 of increasing net earn-
ings by 10 percent on average through 2005.

The 2001 financial performance brings the increase over the last three years to 17.4 percent for net sales, 8 percent for net earn-
ings, and 21.7 percent for diluted earnings per share. '

The consolidated net sales increase was primarily attributable to higher selling prices and increased unit volume for moist
smokeless tobacco products and higher premium case sales for wine products. The Smokeless Tobacco segment accounted for
87.2 percent of the consolidated net sales increase in 2001.

The consolidated gross profit percentage increased slightly in 2001 primarily due to higher margins achieved by the Smokeless
Tobacco segment.

Consolidated operating profit increased 9.7 percent to $845.5 million in 2001. All operating units showed improved financial
results with increases of 8.4 percent for the Smokeless Tobacco segment, 22.1 percent for the Wine segment, and 43.5 percent for
all other operations.

Corporate expenses decreased in 2001 mainly due to a prior year charge for derivative contracts recognized in connection with
the 2000 senior note issuance. 2001 also included lower professional fees and other administrative spending.

Operating income increased 10.7 percent to $833 million, which represented 49.9 percent of consclidated net sales.

Interest decreased slightly as higher income generated from accumulated cash and lower rates on our credit facility debt were
partially offset by higher average debt outstanding. The decline in short term interest rates due to the reductions by the Federal
Reserve Board had a greater impact on interest income earned than on interest expense, due to the larger balance of floating rate
investments as compared to floating rate debt. In 2001, income generated from restricted deposits was slightly higher than the
interest expense incurred for credit facility borrowings which were utilized to partially fund the restricted deposits.

The effective tax rate remained stable at 38.5 percent.

Basic and diluted earnings per share increases were slightly lower than the net earnings increase due to higher average shares
outstanding. This was attributable to the exercise of stock options and the absence of share repurchases. The diluted earnings per
share calculation alse included the effect of the Company’s higher average stock price in 2001, which caused an increase in com-
mon stock equivalents. The Company’s stock repurchase program was suspended in 2000 as a result of the District Court’s ruling
in the antitrust litigation.

The projected outlook for 2002 is for net earnings and diluted earnings per share to increase 7.3 percent and 4.4 percent,
respectively, over 2001, which includes the effect of one less shipping day. On an equivalent shipping day basis, projected net
earnings and diluted earnings per share would increase 10.4 percent and 7.3 percent, respectively. Diluted earnings per share
includes the effects of higher weighted average shares outstanding and a higher projected average stock price in 2002.

The Company’s strategic plan may be affected by the Company’s ability to address competitive pressures, changes in con-
sumer preferences, acceptance of new product introductions and other marketing initiatives, conditions in capital markets and
the effects of litigation and potential regulatory initiatives.
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UST MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continueD)

2000 compared with 1999
Consolidated net sales increased 2.3 percent to $1.548 billion, net earnings decreased 5.8 percent to $441.9 million and diluted
earnings per share increased .7 percent to $2.70.

The consolidated net sales increase was primarily due to higher selling prices for moist smokeless tobacco products. Net sales
for the Wine segment and all other operations remained stable.

Consolidated operating profit decreased 2.1 percent to $770.4 million in 2000. All operating units showed lower operating
profit with decreases of 1.1 percent for the Smokeless Tobacco segment, 14.1 percent for the Wine segment, and 54 percent for all
other operations.

Corporate expenses increased mainly due to a loss on derivative contracts recognized in connection with the 2000 senior note
issuance, along with higher administrative spending for salaries and related costs and professional fees.

Operating income decreased 3.1 percent to $752.7 million and was 48.6 percent of consolidated net sales.

Interest increased significantly due to higher average debt levels at higher interest rates, partially offset by increased income
generated from accumulated cash. Debt levels increased in 2000 due to the issuance of $300 million of senior notes and a $330
million borrowing under the $1 billion credit facility.

The effective tax rate remained stable at 38.5 percent.

The Company’s net earnings performance for 2000 was adversely affected by the Skoal Long Cut value conversion, which
increased tobacco weight per can by 20 percent and had a negative effect on premium unit volume, and the costs associated with
the antitrust litigation.

Basic and diluted earnings per share increases were attributable to lower average shares outstanding due to the Company’s
stock repurchase program.

SMOKELESS TOBACCO SEGMEMNT

2001 2000 1999
NEtSAES .« v ettt e e e $1,450,714 $1,343,779 $1,309,566
Operating profit .. ... i 833,185 768,786 777,122

2001 compared with 2000
Net sales for the Smokeless Tobacco segment increased 8 percent to $1.451 billion and accounted for 86.9 percent of consolidated
net sales in 2001.

The net sales increase was mainly due to higher selling prices and higher unit volume for moist smokeless tobacco products.
Overall moist smokeless tobacco products unit volume increased 2.5 percent for the year to 648.7 million cans and increased
8.3 percent to 168.6 million cans in the fourth quarter.

Smokeless Tobacco segment net sales and unit volume results include the effect of an extra shipping day as compared to 2000.
On an equivalent shipping day basis net sales would have increased 5.9 percent for the year and unit volume for the year and
fourth quarter would have increased .6 percent and .7 percent, respectively.

Moist smokeless tobacco products unit volume results included higher unit volume for full-priced premium and non-pre-
mium products, partially offset by lower premium and non-premjum promotional unit volume. Premium promotional can sales

_ were intentionally reduced by 10.4 million cans or 33.6 percent during 2001. During 2001, the Company introduced three new
products, Copenhagen Black, Rooster Wild Berry and Red Seal Long Cut Straight, which contributed approximately 9.8 million
cans to unit volume results for 2001. The Company estimates that the new products in 2001 had a 2.5 million can incremental
effect on unit volume.

Cost of products sold increased 5.2 percent in 2001 as compared with 2000. The increase was attributable primarily to higher
unit volume and higher unit cost for moist smokeless tobacco products.

Gross profit for the Smokeless Tobacco segment increased 8.5 percent. The gross profit percentage increased slightly in 2001.
Both increases were attributable to the aforementioned higher selling prices, higher full priced can sales and lower promotional
unit volume, partially offset by higher unit costs.

Selling and advertising expenses increased in 2001 as compared to 2000 primarily due to higher planned spending on promo-
tional activities at retail, brand-building initiatives, primarily print advertising and other promotional activities, partially offset by
lower spending on trade promotions resulting from lower promotional unit volume. Indirect selling expenses also increased in
2001 primarily due to salaries and related costs, salesforce training and development and market research.

Smokeless Tobacco segment administrative and other expenses increased in 2001. The increase was attributable to a full year
of costs associated with the required bonding for the antitrust litigation. The increase also included higher salaries and related
costs, costs for litigation settlements and higher ongoing tobacco settlement-related charges.
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Operating profit for the Smokeless Tobacco segment increased 8.4 percent to $833.2 million and includes the effect of the extra
shipping day. On an equivalent shipping day basis operating profit would have increased 5.5 percent.

The Company’s objective is to continue to grow the moist smokeless tobacco category by building category awareness and
social acceptability of smokeless tobacco products. According to the Company’s Retail Activity Data Share & Volume Tracking
System (RAD) (which measures shipments from wholesale to retail) for the year to date period ending December 29, 2001, the
Company'’s share of the moist smokeless tobacco category decreased .5 percentage points to 77.5 percent. Total category retail
shipments, on a can volume basis, increased 2.2 percent versus the prior year, with the premium segment remaining stable and
the price value segment increasing 15.4 percent. Category growth according to RAD is in line with the Company’s estimate of 2 to
3 percent for the year. The moist smokeless tobacco category will continue to be highly competitive in product offerings and price.
Competition and the effects of possible litigation and potential regulatory actions may impact operating and unit volume results
for the segment in the future, as well as the growth rate of the moist smokeless tobacco category.

2000 compared with 1999
Net sales for the Smokeless Tobacco segment increased 2.6 percent to $1.344 billion and accounted for 86.8 percent of consoli-
dated net sales.

Higher selling prices for moist smokeless tobacco products was the main reason for the sales increase. Unit volume for moist
smokeless tobacco products decreased .2 percent in 2000 to 633 million cans. Can sales for premium products declined 3.2 per-
cent, while non-premium can sales increased over 100 percent. The decline in premium can sales was in the Skoal product line,
principally as a result of the Skoal Long Cut value conversion which increased the tobacco weight per can by 20 percent. Other
premium brands, Copenhagen and Rooster, posted increased volume results for 2000. Unit volume for moist smokeless tobacco
products in the fourth quarter decreased 2.3 percent to 155.7 million cans as compared with the similar 1999 period, primarily
due to a decline in premium product can sales. During the second half of 2000, the Company began to reduce its promotional
pricing initiatives and experienced improvement in premium full-priced stock shipments. Returned goods for moist smokeless
tobacco products remained stable in 2000 as compared with the prior year.

During 2000, the Company showed a slight increase in category share, after several years of decline, according to RAD. On an
equalized basis (ounces sold), the moist smokeless tobacco category increased 2.8 percent and the total Company share was 77.9
percent, up .8 points from the prior year. Also, during the latter part of 2000, the growth rate for the non-premium segment of the
moist smokeless tobacco category slowed compared to the previous year.

Cost of products sold increased 10.7 percent in 2000 as compared to 1999. The increase was primarily caused by a significantly
higher federal excise tax rate effective January 2000 and higher costs for leaf tobacco, which included the effect of the additional
tobacco weight per can in our Skoal Long Cut products.

Gross profit for the Smokeless Tobacco segment increased 1.3 percent primarily due to higher selling prices on all moist
smokeless tobacco products. However, the gross profit percentage declined as a result of the aforementioned cost increases and
sales product mix.

Selling and advertising expenses were slightly higher in 2000 as compared to 1999 due to increased spending for promotional
activities at retail, partially offset by lower print advertising. Indirect selling expenses also increased slightly due to salaries and
related costs and salesforce training.

Smokeless Tobacco segment administrative and other expenses were higher in 2000. The increase included costs associated with
the required antitrust bonding along with higher spending for tobacco settlement-related charges and other administrative expenses.

Operating profit for the Smokeless Tobacco segment decreased 1.1 percent to $768.8 million.

WINE SEGMENT

2001 2000 1999
Netsales ... e $188,858 $174,472 $174,272
Operatingprofit............ ...t [ 21,212 17,377 20,234

2001 compared with 2000

Wine segment net sales increased 8.2 percent to $188.9 million and represented 11.3 percent of consolidated net sales. The net
sales increase was attributable to higher premium case volume of 8.8 percent. The premium case volume increase was pri-
marily driven by higher case sales for Columbia Crest and Chateau Ste. Michelle, the Company’s two leading brands, which
accounted for 81.8 percent of 2001 total premium case volume sales. Columbia Crest case volume increased 13.7 percent and
Chateau Ste. Michelle increased 9.3 percent over the corresponding 2000 period. These sales gains were achieved despite softness
in the hospitality sector during the fourth quarter of 2001, which was caused by the events of September 11th.
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In 2001, the Company’s wines continued to garner acclaim with three wines placed on Wine Spectator’s list of “Top 100 Wines
of the World.” Chateau Ste. Michelle Cold Creek Chardonnay was the highest ranked white wine on this prestigious list.

Cost of products sold increased slightly for the Wine segment in 2001, which caused a decrease in the overall gross profit per-
centage. However, gross profit increased 3.9 percent as the higher premium case volume sales more than offset the increase in cost.

Selling, advertising and administrative expenses for the Wine segment were lower in 2001. Selling and advertising expenses
decreased primarily due to lower point of sale advertising spending, partially offset by higher media spending. Indirect selling,
administrative and other spending remained stable in 2001 as higher salary and related costs were offset by the prior year costs
incurred for a canceled acquisition.

The Wine segment reported an operating profit increase of 22.1 percent to $21.2 million.

The Company believes that the favorable wine ratings received on its products in 2001 should continue to drive growth in pre-
mium case volume sales in the future. The Company believes that competitive pressures in the wine industry will continue in
2002, with focus on changes in consumer preferences, pricing and new products. The Company remains confident that the Wine
segment will continue to produce accelerated growth in sales and operating profit over the next several years.

2000 compared with 1999

Wine segment sales remained stable at $174.5 million and represented 11.3 percent of consolidated net sales. Premium case vol-
ume also remained stable at 2.7 million cases as increased case sales for Chateau Ste. Michelle were offset by lower sales for
Domaine Ste. Michelle sparkling wine. Case sales for Domaine Ste. Michelle were adversely affected in 2000 due to higher sales
in the prior year relating to the millennium celebration. Chateau Ste. Michelle and Columbia Crest, the Company’s two leading
brands of premium wine accounted for 79.5 percent of total premium case volume sales. Chateau Ste. Michelle’s case volume
increased 11.9 percent while competitive pressures encountered by Columbia Crest resulted in slightly lower volume. During
2000, the Company addressed the competitive issues by realigning the Columbia Crest brand, and also introduced new products
in the super premium category which have received critical acclaim.

Wine unit costs and gross margin remained stable in 2000.

Selling, advertising and administrative expenses for the Wine segment were higher in 2000. Selling and advertising expenses
increased primarily due to costs incurred for point of sale advertising and sales literature. Indirect selling expenses increased pri-
marily due to higher salaries and related costs. Administrative and other costs also increased primarily due to costs incurred for
a canceled acquisition.

The Wine segment recorded an operating profit of $17.4 million, a decline of 14.1 percent from 1999 resulits.

ALL OTHER OPERATIONS

2001 2000 1999
Netsales ..ot e e $30,743 $29,393 $28,493
Operating loss . ... (8,907) (15,772) (10,240)

2001 compared with 2000

Net sales for all other operations increased 4.6 percent to $30.7 million and accounted for 1.8 percent of consolidated net sales.
Net sales for both the cigar and international operations showed slight increases. Overall cigar unit volume increased in 2001. All
other operations reported an operating loss of $8.9 million in 2001 as compared with a $15.8 million loss in 2000. The decreased
operating loss was primarily due to the absence of the 2000 write-down of cigar inventory and lower selling, advertising, admin-
istrative and other spending in 2001.

2000 compared with 1999
Net sales for all other operations increased 3.2 percent to $29.4 million and accounted for 1.9 percent of consolidated net sales.
Net sales for the cigar operations increased, while sales for the international operations remained stable. All other operations
reported an operating loss of $15.8 million in 2000 as compared with a $10.2 million operating loss in 1999. The increased oper-
ating loss was primarily due to a write-down of cigar inventory.

Notwithstanding the cigar inventory write-down, the cigar business showed some improvement during 2000, which included
higher unit volume and the introduction of two new products that received favorable ratings from the trade.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION

LIQUIDITY

2001 2000 1999
Cashand cashequivalents ..............coviiiiiiiiiiiiiniennn $271,969 $96,034 $74,989
Restricted deposits ...t e 659,897 505,755 -
Totaldebt ... ... i 865,875 869,175 481,965

Cash and cash equivalents increased to $272 million as sources of cash exceeded uses by $175.9 million in 2001. The Company’s
primary sources of cash in 2001 were net earnings of $491.6 million and proceeds from the issuance of stock of $116.6 million.
In 2001, the major uses of cash were for the payment of dividends of $303.3 million, restricted deposits of $154.1 million, the cap-
ital program of $47.2 million and a net increase in inventories of $44.5 miilion.

Cash generated from net earnings in 2001 was mainly provided by the Smokeless Tobacco segment. This cash was sufficient
to meet the Company’s day-to-day operational needs and to pay cash dividends to stockholders. The Company had no additional
borrowings under its credit facility in 2001.

At December 31, 2001, in addition to cash and cash equivalents, the Company had $659.9 million in restricted deposits, clas-
sified as a long-term asset on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. Restricted deposits include $513.2 million on
deposit with the U.S. District Court in satisfaction of the bonding requirement imposed in connection with the Company’s
antitrust litigation and $146.7 million in a restricted collateral account established by the lenders of the credit facility.

Net cash provided by (used in) 2001 2000 1999
Operatingactivities .. ...... .o it e $566,088 $547,036 $463,707
Investingactivities ........ ... i i e (45,987) (35,467) (56,924)
Financing activities ... ... vt e (344,166) (490,524) (365,004)

Operating Activities

The 2001 increase in net cash provided by operating activities, as compared with 2000, was primarily due to increased net earn-
ings, an increase in income taxes payable, lower increases in prepaid expenses, other assets and accounts receivable and higher
tax benefits from the exercise of stock options, partially offset by the 2000 increase in deferred income taxes. The 2000 increase in
deferred income taxes resulted from the restricted deposits into a court-administered qualified settlement fund.

The Company carries significant amounts of leaf tobacco and grape inventories for use in the production of moist smokeless
tobacco products and wine, respectively. In 2001, the Company expended $93.4 million for leaf tobacco and related costs.
Expenditures for leaf tobacco over the last three years were $251.1 million. Total costs of grapes harvested and purchased and pur-
chases of bulk wine were $75.6 million in 2001 and $193.1 million over the last three years.

Investing Activities

The 2001 increase in net cash used in investing activities was primarily due to lower cash receipts associated with the disposition of

property, plant and equipment, as compared to 2000. The 2000 amount included the sale of an office building and related fixed assets.
Over the last three years the use of cash in investing activities was for the purchase of property, plant and equipment. These

capital expenditures have decreased slightly over the last three years, averaging $52 million over that period.

Major areas of capital spending from 1999 through 2001 were:

Smokeless Tobacco segment

o Manufacturing, processing and packaging equipment
o Computer equipment

o Building renovations and additions

Wine segment

o Building additions

o Storage tanks and wine barrels

o Vineyard development and expansion

Over the past three years capital expenditures for the Smokeless Tobacco segment accounted for 52.6 percent of the consoli-
dated total, while the Wine segment accounted for 45.2 percent and all other operations and corporate accounted for 2.2 percent.

Smokeless Tobacco segment capital expenditures for equipment and buildings were focused on increased capacity and man-
ufacturing flexibility. Wine segment capital expenditures were primarily for increased capacity and expansion.
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Financing Activities
Net cash used in financing activities decreased in 2001 to $344.2 million. This was primarily due to lower requirements for cash
funding of the restricted deposits and no stock repurchases in 2001, partially offset by lower net proceeds from borrowings and
higher proceeds from the issuance of stock. There were no additional borrowings and $3.3 million for repayments of debt in 2001,
while 2000 included $630 million in proceeds from borrowings and $242.8 million in repayments. The additional borrowings in
2000 were obtained through the issuance of $300 million in senior notes and a $330 million borrowing under the Company’s
credit facility. The proceeds from these borrowings were used for the repayment of commercial paper borrowings and for the
funding of the required bond.

In 2001, proceeds from the issuance of stock increased significantly due to the exercise of employee stock options. Total cash
dividends paid in 2001 were $303.3 million or 61.7 percent of net earnings. Cash dividends paid were higher due to a 4.5 percent
increase in the 2001 dividend rate approved by the Board of Directors in December 2000 and higher common shares outstanding.

CAPITAL RESOURCES

2001 2000 1999
Dividends Paid ............uiiii e $303,277 $287,009 $291,966
Dividends pershare ................cooeeiiiiiiiriiiiiean.... ' 1.84 1.76 1.68
EBITDA®D ...\ttt 876,224 792,326 813,491

(1) Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization

The Company currently maintains a $1 billion senior secured financing arrangement with various financial institutions (“Credit
Facility”) entered into in October 2000. The Credit Facility is comprised of a $300 million 364-day revolving credit facility (which
was renewed in October 2001), a $370 million three-year term loan facility (which originally included a $170 million letter of
credit) and a $330 million four and one-third year term loan facility. The Credit Facility is secured by a first priority perfected lien
and secured interest in the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, investments, accounts receivable, inventory and tax claims.
The 364-day revolving credit facility is primarily used to support commercial paper borrowings.

In October 2000, the Company borrowed $330 million of floating rate debt under the four and one-third year term loan facil-
ity and deposited the proceeds along with the $170 million letter of credit, both from the Credit Facility, with the U.S. District
Court to satisfy the bonding requirement imposed for the Company’s antitrust litigation involving its smokeless tobacco sub-
sidiary. By December 31, 2000, funds generated from the deferral of income tax payments and excess funds generated from oper-
ations were deposited with the U.S. District Court, replacing the $170 million letter of credit, which was then canceled. During
2001 and 2000, the Company made scheduled principal payments on the term loan facility, reducing the outstanding balance to
$325.9 million. Quarterly scheduled principal payments under the term loan facility are $.8 million through December 31, 2004.

The Credit Facility requires that additional cash deposits be made quarterly, over the three-year term, into a restricted collat-
eral account established by the lenders. During 2001, the Company made cash deposits of $141.1 million into the restricted col-
lateral account as required, which included scheduled quarterly deposits totaling $100 million and income tax refunds from the
prior year of $41.1 million. Provisions, as defined in the Credit Facility, require the maintenance of certain financial ratios and
include restrictions on annual capital expenditures and other transactions. Additionaily, the Company is prohibited from utiliz-
ing funds to repurchase its common stock. The terms of the Credit Facility permit the Company to increase cash dividends by up
to 5 percent annually.

In March 2000, the Company issued $300 million aggregate principal amount of 8.8 percent fixed rate senior notes. These
notes mature on March 15, 2005, with semiannual interest payments. These notes were used to refinance commercial paper bor-
rowings outstanding at the time of issuance.

The issuance of the $300 million senior notes in March 2000 and the $240 million senior notes in May 1999 were both part of
the plan, approved by the Board of Directors in 1998, to borrow up to $1 billion, for the Company’s stock repurchase program,
over a five-year period.
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The Company’s working capital increased significantly at December 31, 2001 to $669.5 million as compared to $518.5 million
at December 31, 2000. The ratio of current assets to current liabilities (current ratio) at December 31, 2001 was 4 to 1. The work-
ing capital increase in 2001 was primarily attributable to the increase in cash and cash equivalents.

In 2002, the Company estimates that tobacco leaf purchases for moist smokeless tobacco products and grape purchases for
wine will be lower than expended in 2001.

In December 2001, the Board of Directors increased the Company'’s first quarter 2002 dividend to stockholders to 48 cents per
share with an indicated annual rate of $1.92 per share. This represents a 4.3 percent increase over 2001.

If the Company’s antitrust litigation is ultimately reversed on appeal, cash required for the payment of income taxes would sig-
nificantly exceed income tax expense for that year. The Company would utilize a portion of the cash held in restricted deposits to
meet this additional cash requirement.

In 2002, expenditures under the Company’s capital program are expected to be approximately $70 million.

The Company anticipates that cash generated from net earnings in 2002 will be sufficient to meet its day-to-day operational
cash needs and for the additional cash deposits required pursuant to the Credit Facility.

MARKET RISK DISCLOSURES

In the normal course of business, the Company is exposed to market risk, primarily in the form of interest rate risk. The Company
routinely monitors this risk, and has instituted policies and procedures to minimize the adverse effects of changes in interest rates
on its net earnings and cash flows. To achieve its objective of minimizing borrowing costs, the Company uses fixed rate debt and
derivative instruments, primarily interest rate swaps. All derivative contracts are for non-trading purposes, and are entered into
with major reputable financial institutions with high credit ratings, thereby minimizing counterparty risk.

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company had $500 million in fixed rate ($300 million at 8.8 percent and $200 million at
7.25 percent) senijor notes and $40 million in floating rate senior notes. In addition, the Company also had $325.9 million and
$329.2 million in floating rate debt outstanding under its Credit Facility at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. In order to
hedge the interest rate risk on the $40 million floating rate senior notes, the Company entered into an interest rate swap to pay a
fixed rate of interest (7.25 percent) and receive a floating rate of interest on a notional amount of $40 million. This swap locks the
interest rate on the $40 million in long-term floating rate senior notes at 7.25 percent.

The following provides a sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk and the effects of hypothetical sudden changes in the applic-
able market conditions on the succeeding year’s earnings, based upon year-end positions. Computations of the potential effects
of the hypothetical market changes are based upon various assumptions, involving interest rate levels and other variables.

The fair values of the Company’s fixed rate senior notes payable are sensitive to changes in interest rates. Based upon an
immediate 100 basis point increase in the applicable interest rate at December 31, 2001, the fair value of the Company’s fixed rate
senior notes would decrease by approximately $20.3 million. Conversely, a 100 basis point decrease in that rate would increase
the fair value of these notes by $21.4 million.

Taking into account the Company’s floating rate senior notes payable and interest rate swap outstanding at December 31,
2001, each 100 basis point increase or decrease in the applicable market rates of interest, with all other variables held constant,
would not have any effect on interest expense. This is due to the full correlation of the terms of the notes with those of
the swap.

These hypothetical changes and assumptions may be different from what actually takes place in the future, and the computa-
tions do not take into account management’s possible actions if such changes actually occurred over time. Considering these lim-
itations, actual effects on future earnings could differ from those calculated above.

In addition, from time to time, the Company enters into foreign currency forward contracts to hedge the risk of variability in
cash flows associated with foreign currency payments. Such payments are primarily made in connection with purchases of cer-
tain barrels for the Company’s wine operations. There were no such contracts at December 31, 2001 or 2000.

Cash deposited with the U.S. District Court and in the restricted collateral account is invested in various short-term securities,
primarily U.S. Treasury securities. These investments are expected to be held until their maturities, but in the event they are sold
prior to such maturities, the fair market values and related proceeds could differ from their recorded values.

The Company routinely invests portions of its cash in short-term commercial paper. It is the Company’s policy to ensure that
this commercial paper is comprised of only investment grade securities (as determined by a third-party rating agency) which
mature in three months or less. These factors, along with continual monitoring of the credit status of the investee companies and
securities, reduces the Company’s exposure to investment risk associated with these securities.
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ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATES AFFECTING FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

The preparation of financial statements, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States,
requires management to make assumptions and estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the bal-
ance sheet date and revenues and expenses recognized and incurred during the reporting period then ended. In addition,
estimates affect the determination of contingent assets and liabilities and their related disclosure.

The Company carries significant amounts of leaf tobacco and grape inventories for use in the production of moist smokeless
tobacco products and wine. The carrying value of these inventories includes management’s assessment of their estimated net
realizable values. Management reviews these inventories to make judgments for potential write-downs for slow-moving,
unsellable or obsolete inventories.

Amounts recognized in the financial statements for the Company’s noncontributory defined benefit pension plans are deter-
mined on an actuarial basis, which requires management to make assumptions for the expected long-term rate of return on plan
assets and the discount rate used in calculating the applicable benefit obligation. In 2001, the Company's expected long-term rate
of return on plan assets was 9.5 percent. The Company believes this assumption was reasonable based upon asset composition
and the fact that the Company’s pension plan assets have exceeded a 9.5 percent return on a historical basis. However, pension
plan assets have actually earned substantially less than 9.5 percent over the last two years. Should this trend continue, future pen-
sion expense will likely increase. At the end of each year, the Company determines the discount rate to be used in discounting
plan liabilities. This rate approximates the current rate at which pension liabilities could be effectively settled. Changes in dis-
count rates over the past two years have not materially affected pension expense. The following provides a sensitivity analysis,
which demonstrates the impact of adverse changes in these assumptions on the Company’s 2002 projected pension expense.
A 50 basis point decrease in the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets would increase this expense by approximately
$1 million, while the same basis point decrease in the discount rate would result in an increase of approximately $4.4 million.

The Company’s primary business, moist smokeless tobacco, sells products with freshness dates. It is the Company’s policy to

- accept sales returns from its customers for products that have exceeded such dates. The Company’s assumptions regarding sales
returns are based on historical experience and current sales trends, and there has not been a significant fluctuation between
assumptions and actual return activity on a historical basis. Actual sales returns have averaged approximately 3.3 percent of moist
smokeless tobacco net sales over the last three years. However, significant changes in moist smokeless tobacco can sales, pro-
motional activities, consumer acceptance of new products and competition could affect net sales amounts in the future.

See notes to consolidated financial statements for disclosure of the Company’s assessment related to pending litigation mat-
ters (see Contingencies note).

Management believes that no one single item, that includes an assumption or estimate made by management, will have a
material effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations, with the exception of litigation matters, if actual
results are different from that assumption or estimate.

Future events could cause actual results to differ from the Company’s assumptions and estimates utilized in the preparation
of the financial statements. Management exercises judgment when evaluating the use of assumptions and estimates, which
include the use of specialists and quantitative and qualitative analysis. Management believes that all assumptions and estimates
used in the preparation of these financial statements are reasonable based on information currently available.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOCKING INFORMATION

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (“the Act”) provides a safe harbor for forward-looking information made on
behalf of the Company. All statements, other than statements of historical facts, which address activities, actions or new brand
introductions that the Company expects or anticipates will or may occur in the future, including such things as expansion and
growth of the Company’s operations and other such matters are forward-looking statements. To take advantage of the safe har-
bor provided by the Act, the Company is identifying certain factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those
expressed in any forward-looking statements made by the Company.

Any one, or a combination, of these factors could materially affect the results of the Company’s operations. These factors
include competitive pressures, changes in consumer preferences, wholesaler ordering patterns, consumer acceptance of new
product introductions and other marketing initiatives, uncertainties associated with ongoing and future litigation, legal and reg-
ulatory initiatives (including those described under Items 1 and 3 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-X, in the Form
8-Ks and in the quarterly Form 10-Qs), and conditions in the capital markets. Forward-looking statements made by the Company
are based on knowledge of its business and the environment in which it operates, but because of the factors listed above, as well
as other factors beyond the control of the Company, actual results may differ from those in the forward-looking statements.
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Year ended December 31 2001 2000 1999
Net Sales to Unaffiliated Custemers
Smokeless TObaCCo . ....oviiin i i $1,450,714 $1,343,779 $1,309,566
Wine .o e e 188,858 174,472 174,272
ALl Other .o 30,743 29,393 28,493
Net sales $1,670,315 $1,547,644 $1,512,331
Operating Profit (Loss]
Smokeless TODACCO .. .vv i $833,185 $768,786 $777,122
W . 21,212 17,377 20,234
AllOther ... (8,907) (15,772) (10,240)
Operating profit 845,490 770,391 787,116
COTpOorate BXPENSES . . oo v ettt (12,462) (17,668) (10,638)
Interest, met . ... e (33,760) (34,288) (13,535)
Earnings before income taxes $799,268 $718,435 $762,943
ldentifiable Assets at December 31
Smokeless Tobacco . .....cviiii i i $1,268,065 $1,120,377 $529,518
WD o 389,243 342,447 305,447
Allother ... ... i e 60,180 68,776 87,678
COTPOrate . ...ttt e 294,214 114,799 93,005
Assets $2,011,702 $1,646,399 $1,015,648
Capital Expenditures
Smokeless TObAacco ... i e $27,364 $28,743 $26,830
W .o e 19,336 20,720 31,182
Allother ... i e e e e 246 522 939
COoTPOorate .. ......lveiiiriin it 284 1,090 338
Capital expenditures $47,230 $51,075 $59,289
Depreciation
Smokeless Tobacco ......oooviieiei i, $20,298 $19,573 $17,279
WIDE L. e e 12,842 13,869 13,279,
ALl Other ... 914 1,395 1,534
1000}y 70 ) ¢: 1 < 951 1,677 1,645
Depreciation $35,005 $36,514 $33,737

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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UST CONSOCLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Year ended December 31 2001 2000 1999
Nt Cales ...t $1,670,315 $1,547,644 $1,512,331
Costs and Expenses

Costof productssold ........... ..ot 312,304 294,802 276,358

EXCISE taXeS ..o i e i e 37,277 35,277 27,917

Selling, advertising and administrative .................. 487,706 464,842 431,578

Total Costs and EXPENSES ... ivvreeiiiieeiinnnnennns 837,287 794,921 735,853
Operating INCOME ... ... i it i 833,028 752,723 776,478
Interest, mel ... 33,760 34,288 13,535
Earnings Before Income Taxes ............cooviiiiien.. 799,268 718,435 762,943
NCOME TaX S ittt e et e et e 307,666 276,549 293,650
Nel Barmimgs ..ottt e e $491,602 $441,886 $469,293
Net Earnings Per Share

BasiC ..o e $2.99 $2.71 $2.69

Diluted . ... e $2.97 $2.70 $2.68
Average Number of Shares

Basic ... e 164,250 163,181 174,355

Diluted .. ..o e 165,682 163,506 175,114

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




UST CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(In thousands)

25

December 31 2001 2000
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cashequivalents ................ .. ... ..., $271,969 $96,034
Accountsreceivable . ... .. e 85,423 82,698
L8175 L0 1 J O 493,820 449,284
Deferred INCOmMe taXeS . . ..o i vttt e 16,855 9,907
Income taxesreceivable .......... .. ... .. ... - 28,915
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ............c..cooviuvennn.. 23,892 24,567
Total current assets 891,959 691,405
Property, plant and equipment, net ... ... ... .. . i 369,568 358,586
Restricted deposits . ... e 659,897 505,755
Other @SSets ... o 90,278 90,653
Total assets $2,011,702 $1,646,399
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities
Short-termdebt ....... ... e $3,300 $3,300
Accounts payable and accrued expenses . . ........ oo 171,610 155,179
Incometaxespayable ............. . . 47,552 14,393
Total current liabilities 222,462 172,872
Long-term debt .. ... .. e 862,575 865,875
Postretirement benefits other than pensions .............. ... ... ... ... 81,679 81,677
Deferred INCOME BaX@S . ... it e e e 183,524 186,559
Other Halilities ...t i i i e it et e i 80,400 68,844
Contingencies [se@ NOtE) ... ... o i e e i - -
Total liabilities 1,430,640 1,375,827
Stockholders’ equity
Capital Stock ... o e e . 101,710 102,372
Additional paid-incapital ......... ... .. . o 635,380 526,996
Retained earnings . ..........coviiii i e 915,990 885,074
Accumulated other comprehensiveloss ... ... o i oot (18,256) (13,606)
1,634,824 1,500,836
Less treasury StoCK . ..o oot e 1,053,762 1,230,264
Total stockholders’ equity 581,062 270,572
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $2,011,702 $1,646,399

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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UST CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)
Year ended December 31 2001 2000 1999
Operating Activities
Netearnings .........c.ccveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieen.n. $491,602 $441,886 $469,293
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization ................... 43,196 39,603 37,013
Deferred incometaxes . ........cvvvivniieenn.n. (7,478) 198,578 (1,894)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accountsreceivable ............ ... ...l (2,725) (18,349) (1,080)
Inventories ..ot (44,536) (45,815) (30,835)
Prepaid expenses and other assets .............. (7,184) {26,208) (11,630)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses
and other liabilities ......................... 20,877 16,357 (6,271)
Tax benefits from the exercise of stock options ... 10,262 1,190 4,044
INnCOmetaxes ......ooviiir ittt 62,074 (60,206) 5,067
Net cash provided by operating activities 566,088 547,036 463,707
Investing Activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment ........... (47,230) (51,075) {59,289)
Dispositions of property, plant and equipment ......... 1,243 15,608 2,365
Net cash used in investing activities (45,987) (35,467) (56,924)
Financing Activities
Proceedsfromdebt .......... ... ... i - 630,000 567,365
Repaymentofdebt ............. ... ..o (3,300} (242,790 (185,400)
Restricted deposits ............ooiiii (154,142) (505,755) -
Proceeds from the issuance ofstock ................... 116,553 12,500 10,963
Dividendspaid ........... ... i (303,277) (287,009) (291,966)
Stockrepurchased ............ ... ... i il - (97,470) (465,966)
Net cash used in financing activities (344,1686) (490,524) (365,004)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 175,935 21,045 41,779
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 96,034 74,989 33,210
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $271,969 $96,034 $74,989
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid during the year for:
Incometaxes .........ccoiiiiiiii i e $284,822 $137,658 $287,133
6o TiT=) (-] A PP 68,189 39,286 13,734

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




UST CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

{Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Accumulated
Additional Other Total
Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Treasury Stockholders’
Stock Capital Earnings Loss Stock Equity
Balance at December 31,1998 ................... $104,048 $512,089 $684,489  $(18,420) $(813,913) $468,293
Comprehensive income:
Netearnings . ....covvirviniineenneeeennnnn... - - 469,293 - - 469,293
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax: '
_ Foreign currency translation adjustment ... ... - - - (743) - (743)
Minimum pension liability adjustment ....... - - - 6,886 - 6,886
Other comprehensive income ................. 6,143
Comprehensiveincome ....................... 475,436
Cash dividends — $1.68 pershare ................ - - (291,966) - - (291,966)
Exercise of stock options — 836,200 shares and
issuance of restricted stock — 4,550 shares ...... 420 13,587 - - - 14,007
Income tax benefits, net of increase in
receivables from exercise of stock options . ...... - 1,000 - - - 1,000
Stock repurchased — 16,121,000 shares ........... - - - - (465,966)  (465,966)
Balance at December 31,1999 ................... 104,468 526,676 861,816 (12,277  (1,279,879) 200,804
Comprehensive income:
Netearnings ................... e - ~ 441,886 - - 441,886
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustment .. .... - - - (66) - (66)
Minimum pension liability adjustment ....... - - - (1,263) - (1,263)
Other comprehensiveloss ..................... (1,329)
Comprehensive income ....................... 440,557
Cash dividends — $1.76 pershare ................ - - (287,009) - - (287,009)
Exercise of stock options — 801,100 shares and
issuance of restricted stock — 5,550 shares . .. ... 404 11,738 - - - 12,142
Income tax benefits and decrease in
receivables from exercise of stock options . . .. ... - 1,548 - - - 1,548
Stock repurchased — 4,692,100 shares ............ - - - - (97,470) (97,470)
Retirement of treasury stock — 5,000,000 shares ... (2,500) (12,966) (131,619) - 147,085 -
Balance at December 31,2000 ................... 102,372 526,996 885,074  (13,606) (1,230,264) 270,572
Comprehensive income:
Netearnings ........... ... ..o, - - 481,602 - - 491,602
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax:
Cumulative effect of accounting change —
SFASNO.133 ... it - - - (374) - (374)
Net loss on effective cash flow hedges ........ -~ - - (1,000) - (1,000)
Foreign currency translation adjustment ... . ... - - - (933) - (833)
Minimum pension liability adjustment ....... - - - (2,343) - (2,343)
Other comprehensiveloss ..................... (4,650)
Comprehensiveincome ....................... 486,952
Cash dividends — $1.84 pershare ................ - - (303,277) - - (303,277)
Exercise of stock options — 4,671,800 shares and
issuance of restricted stock — 5,470 shares ...... 2,338 123,486 - - - 125,824
Income tax benefits, net of increase in
receivables from exercise of stock options ....... - 931 - - - 991
Retirement of treasury stock — 6,000,000 shares . .. (3,000) (16,093) (157,409) - 176,502 -
Balance at December 31,2001 ................... $101,710 $635,380 $915,990 $(18,256) $(1,053,762) $581,062

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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UST NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States and, as such, include amounts based on judgments and estimates made by management. Management believes
that the judgments and estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are appropriate, however,
actual results may differ from these estimates. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and
all of its subsidiaries after the elimination of intercompany accounts and transactions. Investments in partnerships and joint ven-
tures are accounted for by the equity method and are carried at an amount equal to the Company’s equity in the underlying net
assets of these entities.

The estimated fair values of amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements have been determined by using avail-
able market information or appropriate valuation methodologies. All current assets and current liabilities are carried at their fair
values, which approximate market value, because of their short-term nature. The fair values of long-term assets and long-term
liabilities approximate their carrying values, with the exception of the senior notes (see Borrowing Arrangements note).

Certain prior year amounts reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position have been reclassified to conform to
the 2001 presentation.

Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the amount is fixed
or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured. The Company’s revenues are derived principally from the sale of moist
smokeless tobacco products and premium wines with immaterial sales from other products. Revenue from the sale of moist
smokeless tobacco products is recognized, net of any discounts or rebates granted, when title passes, which corresponds with the
arrival of the shipments at the customer’s location. Revenue from the sale of wine is recognized, net of allowances, at the time
products are shipped to the customer. Revenue from the sale of all other products is predominantly recognized when title passes,
which occurs at the time of shipment to the customer. ‘
Shipping and handling costs incurred by the Company in connection with products sold are included in “cost of products
sold” on the Consolidated Statement of Earnings.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents are amounts invested in highly liquid instruments with maturities of three months or less when acquired.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost or market. The major portion of leaf tobacco costs is determined by the last-in, first-out
(LIFO) method. The cost of the remaining inventories is determined by the first-in, first-out (FIFO) and average cost methods.
Leaf tobacco and wine inventories are included in current assets as a standard industry practice, notwithstanding the fact that
such inventories are carried for several years for the purpose of curing and aging.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed by the straight-line
method based on estimated salvage values, where applicable, and the estimated useful lives of the assets which range from 5 to
40 years. Improvements are capitalized if they extend the useful lives of the related assets, while repairs and maintenance are
expensed when incurred. Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever facts and circumstances indicate that the car-
rying amount may not be fully recoverable.

Stock Options

The Company accounts for employee stock compensation plans in accordance with the intrinsic value-based method permitted
by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, which generally does
not result in compensation cost.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided on all revenue and expense items included in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings, regardless of
the period in which such items are recognized for income tax purposes, adjusted for items representing permanent differences
between pretax accounting income and taxable income. Deferred income taxes result from the future tax consequences associ-
ated with temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for tax and financial reporting purposes.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net earnings by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
during the period. The diluted earnings per share computation includes the effect of shares which would be issuable upon the
exercise of outstanding stock options, reduced by the number of shares which are assumed to be purchased by the Company
from the resulting proceeds at the average market price during the period.




SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

Accounting Pronouncements :

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) has issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS or Statement)
No. 141, Business Combinations, and No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets which significantly alters the manner in which
companies account for business combinations, goodwill and other intangible assets. The Company will adopt these Statements
effective January 1, 2002, as required. Prior to June 30, 2002, the Company will perform the first of the required impairment tests
of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets as of January 1, 2002 and the effect of these tests are not expected to have a mate-
rial impact on the Company’s results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company will adopt SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets, which provides a single accounting model for measuring impairment of long-lived assets and the disposal of such assets.
Provisions outlined in this Statement supersede SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-
Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of and certain provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 30, Reporting the Results of
Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring
Events and Transactions. The Company does not believe that adoption of this Statement will have a material effect on its results
of operations, financial position or cash flows.

The Company will adopt Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 00-25, Vendor Income Statement Characterization of
Consideration Paid to a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products and Issue No. 00-14, Accounting for Certain Sales Incentives in the first
quarter of 2002, as required. These issues require that costs associated with various Company sales incentives be reclassified from
selling, advertising and administrative expenses to a reduction in net sales for all periods presented on the Company’s
Consolidated Statement of Earnings. The income statement reclassifications required by these issues will have no effect on the
Company'’s operating income or net earnings.

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts or where otherwise noted)

INVENTORIES December 31
2001 2000
Leaf tobaCCO .. e e $215,728 $199,382
ProdUCtS N PrOCESS .. vttt ettt ettt e ettt e e e 171,730 141,561
Finished g00dS ... ..ot i i e e e 88,978 88,739
Other materials and sUPPLEs ...t e 17,384 19,602
$493,820 $449,284

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, $215.6 million and $196.8 million, respectively, of leaf tobacco inventories were valued using the
LIFO method. The average costs of these inventories were greater than the amounts at which these inventories were carried in
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position by $58.5 million and $56.2 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2001, the Company had purchase commitments for the upcoming year of approximately $30.6 million for
leaf tobacco for its smokeless tobacco products. Commitments to purchase grapes over the next five years, for production of wine,
average approximately $41.9 million per year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET December 31
2001 2000
AN o oo e e $22,126 $21,566
BUIIAINS .. e e 261,208 254,110
Machinery and eqUIPIMent . . ... ..ttt et e e 406,878 373,758
690,212 649,434
Less allowances for depreciation . ....... ..ottt e e e 320,644 290,848
$369,568 $358,586

Depreciation expense was $35 million for 2001, $36.5 million for 2000 and $33.7 million for 1999.

The Company also leases certain property and equipment under various operating lease arrangements which are not reflected
in the amounts above. Annual commitments under these leases, which average $6.1 million per year through the year 2006,
extend through 2030 and total $46.9 million. Lease expense for the years 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $13.6 million, $11.2 million and
$9.8 million, respectively.

RESTRICTED BDEPCSITS

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company had $513.2 million and $502.8 million, respectively, on deposit with the U.S.
District Court in satisfaction of the bonding requirement imposed in connection with the antitrust litigation involving the
Company’s smokeless tobacco subsidiary (see Contingencies note). In accordance with the bonding requirement, these deposits
were made into a court-administered qualified settlement fund, which resulted in the deferral of 2000 federal income taxes.
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RESTRICTED DEPCSITS, continued

During 2001, interest income earned on the deposited funds exceeded taxes paid, accounting for the overall change in carrying
value from December 31, 2000. In 2000, the Company utilized the $330 million borrowing under the Credit Facility (see Borrowing
Arrangements note) and excess funds from operations, including the deferral of income tax payments, to fund the deposits into the
qualified settlement fund.

In addition, the Company had $146.7 million and $3 million on deposit at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, in a
restricted collateral account established by the lenders of the Credit Facility. During 2001, the Company made deposits totaling
$141.1 million into this account, including a $41.1 million refund of federal taxes. The increase in carrying value from December 31,
2000 is attributable to these deposits along with interest income earned during the period. The Credit Facility requires that addi-
tional cash deposits be made into the restricted collateral account on a quarterly basis over the facility’s three-year term.

The aggregate deposits held in the qualified settlement fund and the restricted collateral accounts are reported as “restricted
deposits” on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, and are classified as noncurrent due to the uncertainty of the tim-
ing of the Appellate Court’s decision on the antitrust litigation. These restricted deposits are subject to restrictions on access and
use by the Company.

OTHER ASSETS ' December 31

2001 2000

Prepaid pension COSIS . ... ... e $29,818 $31,159
Partnership INVeStments ... ...t e e e e 16,270 16,661
Capitalized debt COSIS ... ... ..ottt e e 13,369 19,866
L0 11 0T At 30,821 22,967
$90,278 $90,653

Capitalized debt costs at December 31, 2001 and 2000 included fees incurred for the Credit Facility and those incurred in
connection with the senior notes payable issued in March 2000 and May 1999 (see Borrowing Arrangements note). The costs asso-
ciated with the Credit Facility are being amortized over 36 months and those incurred with the issuance of notes payable are being
amortized over the applicable term. :

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES December 31
: 2001 2000
Trade accounts payable . .............ororte i e $55,991 $54,813
Employee compensationand benefits ............ .. .. 59,508 55,674
Interest payable on long-termdebt ...... ... ... L 9,713 10,760
Tobacco settlement-related Charges . ...ttt it e 10,630 7,963
Other acCried EXPeISES ..o\ttt ettt ettt e e e 35,708 25,969
$171,610 $155,179

BORROWING ARRANGEMENTS
Long-term debt, less current maturities, consisted of the following;

December 31

2001 2000
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value® Value Value®
Credit Facility borrowing,
due February 16,2005 ................ccoiveeenn. $325,875 $325,875 $329,175 $329,175

Senior notes, dueJune 1,2009 ..................... 240,000 245,744 240,000 215,768
Senior notes, due March 15,2005 .................. 300,000 325,922 300,000 300,658

865,875 897,541 869,175 845,601
Less current maturities (3,300) (3,300) (3,300) (3,300)

$862,575 $894,241 $865,875 $842,301

(1) Represents amount at which liability could effectively be settled as of the applicable date. Calculation of this value is based upon present value of
future cash flows.
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BORROWING ARRANGEMENTS, continued

In October 2001, the Company renewed its $300 million 364-day credit facility, which is one component of its senior secured
$1 billion financing arrangement (the “Credit Facility”). This Credit Facility, which was entered into in October 2000 with various
financial institutions, is also comprised of a $370 million three-year term loan facility (which originally included a $170 million
letter of credit) and a $330 million four and one-third year term loan facility. The applicable interest rates on borrowings under
the Credit Facility are as follows: the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 175 basis points (or the prime rate plus 75 basis
points) on the 364-day revolving credit facility, LIBOR plus 200 basis points on the three-year term loan and LIBOR plus 250 basis
points on the four and one-third year term loan. The 364-day revolving credit facility is primarily used to support commercial
paper borrowings. The Company had no commercial paper borrowings at December 31, 2001 or 2000.

The Credit Facility is secured by a first priority perfected lien and secured interest in the Company’s cash and cash equivalents,
investments, accounts receivable, inventory and tax claims.

Provisions of the Credit Facility include restrictions on annual capital expenditures and other transactions, as defined in the
agreement. In addition, the Company is permitted to increase cash dividends by up to 5 percent annually. The Credit Facility also
requires the payment of commitment fees and the maintenance of certain financial ratios. Commitment fees are based upon
unused capacity under the Credit Facility and are calculated as follows: .5 percent per annum on the 364-day revolving credit
facility and .875 percent per annum on the three-year term loan. Commitment fees incurred were $4.8 million and $1.6 million
for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

In October 2000, the Company borrowed the $330 million term loan under the Credit Facility and deposited it along with the $170
million letter of credit with the U.S. District Court to satisfy the bonding requirement for the antitrust litigation (see Restricted Deposits
note). As of December 31, 2000, additional cash deposits replaced the $170 million letter of credit, which was then canceled. The let-
ter of credit was superseded by $170 million in additional borrowing capacity under the three-year loan. During the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company made scheduled principal payments totaling $3.3 million and $.8 million, respectively.
Additional principal payments of $.8 million are required at the end of each calendar quarter through December 31, 2004. At December
31, 2001 and 2000, the effective annual interest rate on the outstanding balance was 4.375 percent and 9.25 percent, respectively.

In March 2000, the Company issued $300 million aggregate principal amount of 8.8 percent fixed rate senior notes. These
notes mature on March 15, 2005, with interest payable semiannually. .

In May 1999, the Company issued $240 million aggregate principal amount of senior notes, of which $200 million is 7.25 per-
cent fixed rate debt and $40 million is floating rate debt, which bears interest at the three-month LIBOR plus 90 basis points.
These notes mature on June 1, 2009, with interest payable semiannually and quarterly on the fixed and floating rate notes, respec-
tively. To hedge the interest rate risk on the $40 million floating rate debt, the Company executed an interest rate swap, effectively
fixing the rate at 7.25 percent (see Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities note).

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Company monitors and manages risk associated with changes in interest rates and, to a lesser extent, foreign currency
exchange rates. The Company’s risk management policy involves increasing its liquidity and maintaining its financial flexibility
by reducing or transferring risk exposure at appropriate costs. The Company does so, from time to time, by entering into deriva-
tive financial instruments to hedge against exposure to these risks. The Company has implemented risk management controls
and limits to monitor its risk position and ensure that hedging performance is in line with Company objectives.

The Company’s risk management policy does not permit the use of complex multi-faceted derivative instruments or com-
pound derivative instruments without the approval of the Board of Directors. In addition, the policy does not permit the use of
leveraged financial instruments. The Company does not use derivatives for trading or speculative purposes. The Company miti-
gates the risk of non-performance by a counterparty by using only major reputable financial institutions with high credit ratings.

Effective January 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,
as amended by SFAS No. 138, Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities, as it relates to the use
of derivative instruments, on a cumulative basis. SFAS No. 133 requires the recognition of all derivatives as either assets or liabil-
ities in the statement of financial position with measurement at fair value. The Statement calls for changes in the fair values of
derivative instruments to be reported in either net earnings or other comprehensive income depending on the designated use of
the derivative and whether it meets the criteria for hedge accounting. The accounting for gains and losses associated with changes
in the fair value of derivatives and the related effects on the consolidated financial statements is subject to their hedge designa-
tion and whether they meet effectiveness standards.

In connection with the May 1999 issuance of floating rate senior notes, the Company has hedged its interest rate risk by enter-
ing into a ten-year interest rate swap with a notional amount of $40 million and quarterly settlement dates over the term of the
contract. The Company pays a fixed rate of 7.25 percent and receives a floating rate of three-month LIBOR plus 90 basis points
on the notional amount. In accordance with SFAS No. 133, this interest rate swap has been designated as a cash flow hedge, which
is perfectly effective as the terms and conditions of the floating rate debt coincide perfectly with the swap. The Company entered
into such an agreement so that changes in the cash flows from the interest rate swap will perfectly offset the changes in the cash
flows associated with the floating rate of interest on the $40 million debt principal (see Borrowing Arrangements note). The tran-
sition adjustment for this cash flow hedge, recognized on January 1, 2001, upon adoption of SFAS No. 133, was a loss of $.6 mil-
lion ($.4 million net of taxes), and was recorded in “accumulated other comprehensive loss” on the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position. The fair value of the swap at December 31, 2001 and 2000 was a net liability of $2.1 million and $.6 million,
respectively, based on dealer quotes, considering current market rates. This fair value was included in “other liabilities” on the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position in 2001 in accordance with SFAS No. 133. “Accumulated other comprehensive loss”
at December 31, 2001 included the accumulated loss on the cash flow hedge (net of taxes) of $1.4 million. This reflects $1 million
(net of taxes) of other comprehensive loss recognized for the year ended December 31, 2001 in connection with the net pay-
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DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES, continued

ments/receipts and change in fair value of the swap since January 1, 2001. The Company anticipates that approximately
$1.1 million of the deferred loss on the swap, included in “accumulated other comprehensive loss,” will be reclassified into net
earnings during the next twelve months as a result of the floating rate interest payable on the hedged senior notes. The amount
reclassified from “accumulated other comprehensive loss” to net earnings during the year ended December 31, 2001 in connec-
tion with this interest rate swap was $.4 million (net of taxes).

In the event the Company were to terminate this interest rate swap or remove its designation as a cash flow hedge prior to
maturity, the net gain or loss would remain in “accumulated other comprehensive loss” and be reclassified into net earnings as
an adjustment to interest expense over the remainder of the floating rate senior notes’ term.

In addition, from time to time, the Company has entered into foreign currency forward contracts, designated as cash flow hedges,
in order to hedge the risk of variability in cash flows associated with foreign currency payments required in connection with firm com-
mitments to purchase oak barrels for its wine operations. There were no such contracts outstanding at December 31, 2001 and 2000.

There were no other derivative contracts at December 31, 2001, with the exception of forward contracts to purchase. leaf
tobacco for use in manufacturing smokeless tobacco products and grapes and bulk wine for use in wine production. These
forward contracts meet the normal purchases exception, exempting them from SFAS No. 133 accounting and reporting.

CAPITAL STOCK

The Company has two classes of capital stock, preferred stock and common stock. Preferred stock carries a par value of $.10 and
no shares have been issued. Common stock carries a $.50 par value. Authorized preferred stock is 10 million shares and autho-
rized common stock is 600 million shares.

Common stock issued and outstanding at December 31, 2001 and 2000 was 203,420,506 shares and 204,743,236 shares, respec-
tively. Treasury shares held at December 31, 2001 and 2000 were 35,821,600 shares and 41,821,600 shares, respectively. In May
2001, the Company canceled 6 million shares held in treasury, in connection with the establishment of the 2001 Stock Option Plan
(see Stock Options note). In May 2000, in connection with an amendment to the 1992 Stock Option Plan, the Company canceled
5 million shares held in treasury (see Stock Options note).

In 1999, the Board of Directors authorized the Company to repurchase up to 20 million shares of its common stock from time
to time in open market or negotiated transactions, under a share repurchase program, for use in connection with benefit and
compensation plans and other corporate purposes. This program has been suspended since March 2000 due to the antitrust
litigation and no share repurchases have been made subsequent to that suspension. During 2000, the Company repurchased
4.7 million shares at a cost of $97.5 million under this program and as of December 31, 2001, a total of 7.2 million shares of the
20 million authorized have been repurchased.

Events causing changes in the issued and outstanding shares are described in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Stockholders’ Equity.

STOCK OPTIONS

In May 2001, the Company’s stockholders approved the 2001 Stock Option Plan, authorizing that 6 million shares of the
Company’s common stock be reserved for issuance under the plan. The Company maintains three additional stock option plans,
the 1992 and 1982 Stock Option Plans and a Nonemployee Directors’ Stock Option Plan. The Company accounts for stock options
in accordance with the intrinsic value-based method permitted by SFAS No. 123. Under the Company’s current plans, options
may be granted at not less than the fair market value on the date of grant and therefore no compensation expense is recognized
for the stock options granted.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options which have no
vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option pricing models require the input of highly subjective assump-
tions including the expected stock price volatility. Because the Company’s employee stock options have characteristics signifi-
cantly different from those of traded options and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the
fair value estimate, in management’s opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair
value of its stock options.

Consistent with the method described in SFAS No. 123, if compensation expense for the Company’s plans had been deter-
mined based on the fair value at the grant dates for awards under its plans, net earnings and earnings per share would have been
reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

2001 2000 1999

Net earnings:

Asreported . ... e $491,602 $441,886 $469,293

Proforma ... ... $486,706 $435,320 $463,052
Basic earnings per share: '

ASTeported . ...t e $2.99 $2.71 $2.69

Proforma .......oiiiiiiii e e $2.96 $2.67 $2.66
Diluted earnings per share:

ASTEPOItEd ...ttt e e $2.97 $2.70 $2.68

Proforma ...t $2.95 $2.66 $2.64
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STOCK CPTIONS, continued
The fair value of each option grant, for pro forma disclosure purposes, was estimated on the date of grant using the modified
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

2001 2000 1999
Expected dividendyield ........... ... .. ...l 6.5% 7.0% 5.1%
Risk-freeinterestrate ........coooee it 4.5% 6.1% 5.6%
Expectedvolatility . ... 30.3% 31.2% 26.0%
Expectedlifeofoption ...... ... ..o i 7.5 years 7.5 years 7.5 years

Under the 2001 and 1992 Stock Option Plans, 6 million and 10.4 million shares, respectively, were originally authorized for grant
and options first become exercisable, in ratable installments or otherwise, over a period of one to five years from the date of grant
and may be exercised up to a maximum of ten years from the date of grant using various payment methods. In May 2000, the
Company’s stockholders approved an amendment to the 1992 Stock Option Plan, increasing the number of shares authorized for
grant by 5 million, to be issued over the plan’s remaining term. Under the Nonemployee Directors’ Stock Option Plan, 200,000
shares were authorized for grant, and options first become exercisable six months from the date of grant, may be exercisable up
to a maximum of ten years from the date of grant and must be paid in full at the time of the exercise.

At December 31, 2001, 6 million shares were available for grant under the 2001 Stock Option Plan, 690,000 shares were avail-
able for grant under the 1992 Stock Option Plan and 42,000 shares were available for grant under the Nonemployee Directors’
Stock Option Plan, while no shares were available under the 1982 Stock Option Plan.

Receivables from the exercise of stock options in the amount of $22.5 million in 2001, $13.3 million in 2000 and $13.6 million
in 1999 have been deducted from stockholders’ equity.

The following table presents a summary of the Company’s stock option activity and related information for the years ended
December 31 (options in thousands):

2001 2000 1999
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Number Average Number Average Number Average
of Exercise of Exercise “of Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price
Outstanding at
beginningofyear .................... ..., 17,537.4 $26.95 15,321.5 $28.74 14,454.6 $28.10
Granted ...t 1,563.8 32.28 3,119.0 15.06 1,774.6 28.35
Exercised ....... .. (4,671.8) 26.90 (801.1) 15.02 (836.2) 16.60
Forfeited ...........ccoiviiiiiiiiiiiii (149.0) 19.93 (100.2} 26.28 (71.5) 30.62
Expired ...... ... (22.8) 24.19 {1.8) 14.74 - -
QOutstanding atend ofyear ................. 14,257.8 $27.64 17,537.4 $26.95 15,3215 $28.74
Exercisable atendofyear................... 10,365.1 $29.16 13,008.1 $29.54 12,188.7 $28.54
Weighted-average fair value of options
granted during theyear .................. $5.13 $2.60 $5.46

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2001 (options in thousands):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Range Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

of Number Average Average Number Average

Exercise of Remaining Exercise of Exercise
Prices Options Contractual Life Price Options Price
$15.06-15.53 2,613.1 8.5 years $15.06 750.8 $15.07
24.19-35.25 11,644.7 5.2 years 30.46 9,614.3 30.26
$15.06-35.25 14,257.8 5.8 years $27.64 10,365.1 $29.16

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AND COMPENSATION PLANS

The Company and its subsidiaries maintain a number of noncontributory defined benefit pension plans covering substantially
all employees over age 21 with at least one year of service. The Company’s funding policy for its funded plans is to contribute an
amount sufficient to meet or exceed Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) minimum requirements. The
Company also maintains unfunded plans providing pension and additional benefits for certain employees.
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AND COMPENSATION PLANS, continued

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries also maintain a number of postretirement welfare benefit plans which provide cer-
tain medical and life insurance benefits to substantially all full-time employees who have attained certain age and service
requirements upon retirement. The health care benefits are subject to deductibles, co-insurance and in some cases flat dollar
contributions which vary by plan, age and service at retirement. All life insurance coverage is noncontributory.

The following table represents a reconciliation of the plans at December 31:

Postretirement Benefits
Pension Plans Other than Pensions
2001 2000 2001 2000
Change in Benefit Obligation
Benefit obligation at beginningofyear ............. ... ... ... ool $333,535 $313,089 $61,395 $56,275
RS2 i Uo7 o 1Y S G 10,935 10,100 3,458 3,057
08105 (1] A o0 -1 P 24,793 23,811 4,096 4,227
Plan participants’ contributions ... - - 41 37
Plan amendments .. .....ooir it e e 599 - (358) -
ACHUAITAL 0SS ..ottt i 10,113 3,699 3,616 204
Benefitspaid ..o (18,165) (17,164) (3,421) (2,405)
Benefit obligation at end of year $361,810 $333,535 $68,829 $61,395
Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginningofyear................... ...l $279,882 $300,091 - -
Actual retuIm On plan @ssets ..........oviiuiiirtii i e (6,275) (7,774) - -
Employer contributions ...ttt e 6,602 5,347 - -
Benefits paid .. ...oo ot e (18,165) (17,164) - -
AdmiInistrative BXPemISES . ..ttt (1,206) (618 - -
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $260,838 $279,882 - -
Funded Status
Funded statusatendofyear ......... ... it $(100,972) $(53,653) $(68,829) $(61,395)
Unrecognized actuarial loss/(gain) ........... ... i 73,016 33,156 (3,029) (7,385)
Unrecognized prior ServiCe COSE . ...ttt iit vt i i eenens (1,094) {1,836) (9,821) (12,897)
Unrecognized transition obligation .......... .. ... i 396 514 - -
Accrued benefit cost $(28,654) $(21,819) $(81,679) $(81,677)
Amounts Recognized in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position:
Prepaid benefitasset . ... $29,818 $31,159 $ - $ -
Accrued benefitliability ........... (81,443) (72,387) (81,679) (81,677)
Intangible asset ... ... .t e 2,352 2,395 - -
Accumulated other comprehensiveloss ......... ...l 20,619 17,014 - -
Net amount recognized $(28,654) $(21,819) $(81,679) $(81,677)
The weighted-average assumptions used for the year ended December 31 were:
Postretirement Benefits
Pension Plans Other than Pensions
2001 2000 2001 2000
DHSCOUNE TALE ..ottt ittt et ittt ittt i e 7.25% 7.50% 7.25% 7.50%
Expectedreturn on planassets . .........ovit i 9.50% 9.75% - -
Rate of compensationincrease . ......... ...t 4.80% 4.80% - -

The rate of increase in per capita costs of covered health care benefits is assumed to be 10 percent for 2002 and is assumed to
decrease gradually to 4.8 percent by the year 2007 and remain at that level thereafter.
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AND COMPENSATION PLANS, continued
Net periodic benefit cost for the year ended December 31 includes the following components:

Postretirement Benefits
Pension Plans Other than Pensions
2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999
Service cost ....... ... $10,935  $10,100  $11,957 $3,458 $3,057 $3,348
Interestcost ....... ... e 24,733 23,811 21,738 4,096 4,227 3,908
Expected return on planassets ................... (24,751) (27,271)  (23,202) - - -
Amortization of unrecognized
transition obligation . .............. ... ... ... 118 (247) (247) - - -
Amortization of prior service cost ..:.............. (144) (228) (215) (3,432) (3,404) (2,561)
Recognized actuarial loss/(gain) .................. 2,485 1,885 2,998 (741) (382) (13)

Net periodic benefit cost $13,436 $8,050 $13,029 $3,381 $3,498 $4,682

The projected benefit obligation and accumulated benefit obligation for the pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations
in excess of plan assets were $170.1 million and $156.8 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2001, and $161.5 million and
$150.8 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2000. The fair value of plan assets for such plans as of December 31, 2001 and 2000
was $76.1 million and $81.8 million, respectively.

Other liabilities include the noncurrent portion of the pension liabilities at December 31, 2001 and 2000 of $75.9 million and
$67 million, respectively. '

The assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans. To illus-
trate, a one-percentage point increase in the assumed health care cost trend rate would increase the accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation as of December 31, 2001 by approximately $8.8 million and increase the service and interest cost components
of expense by approximately $1.2 million. A one-percentage point decrease in the assumed health care cost trend rate would have
decreased the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at December 31, 2001 by approximately $7.8 million and decreased
the service and interest components of expense by approximately $1.1 million.

Plan assets of the Company’s pension plans include marketable equity securities, including common stock of the Company,
and corporate and government debt securities. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the fund held 1.3 million shares of the Company’s
common stock having a market value of $44.8 million and $35.9 million, respectively. Dividends paid on shares held by the fund
were $2.4 million and $2.3 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The Company sponsors a defined contribution plan (Employees’ Savings Plan) covering substantially all of its employees. The
Plan required one year of service prior to eligibility for participation. Effective May 1, 2001, employees were eligible to participate
in the Plan from the commencement of their employment provided they are scheduled to work at least 1,000 hours per year.
Company contributions are based upon participant contributions and begin upon completion of one year of service. The expense
associated with Company contributions was $7.5 million in 2001, $5.6 million in 2000 and $4.2 million in 1999. Effective
July 1, 2000, the Company temporarily increased its matching contributions for a majority of the Plan's participants. The tempo-
rary increase will revert back to the original matching contribution effective January 1, 2002.

The Company has an Incentive Compensation Plan which provides for incentive payments to designated employees based on
stated percentages of net earnings before income taxes as defined in the Plan. Expenses under the Plan amounted to $41.9 million
in 2001, $37.6 million in 2000 and $40 million in 1999.

INCOME TAXES
The income tax provision (benefit) consists of the following:

2001 2000 1999

Current:

Federal .. ... i e e e $281,6286 $76,366 $256,901

Stateand local ...... ... i e e s 33,518 1,605 38,643

Total current 315,144 77,971 295,544

Deferred:

Federal ..o e e e e e (6,5586) 171,604 (1,988)

State and local ... vt e e e e e (922) 26,974 94

Total deferred (7,478) 198,578 (1,894)

$307,666 $276,549 $293,650
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INCOME TAXES, continued
The 1999 current tax provision reflects the reversal of certain tax reserves. In addition, the tax provisions do not reflect $10.3 mil-
lion, $1.2 million and $4 million for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, of tax benefits arising from the exercise of stock options.
These amounts were credited directly to additional paid-in capital.

The deferred tax provision (benefit) amounts do not reflect the tax effects resulting from changes in accumulated other com-
prehensive loss (see Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss note).

Deferred income taxes arise from temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. ‘

Components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31 are as follows:

2001 2000
Deferred tax assets:

Postretirement benefits other than pensions............ ... ..o $28,588 $28,587
Accrued pension liabilities . . .......... e e e e e 27,681 24,593
Otheraccrued liabilities ... ... e 5,501 5,017
F 0 4 =] 0 1= v OO U PPP e 7,300 6,162
Total deferred tax assets 69,670 64,359

Deferred tax liabilities:
Restricted dePOSIt ..o\ v ittt e e " 175,000 175,000
Depreciation ...........coovviiniiien.. e 43,780 44,281
Prepaid pension @sset . ... e P 10,436 10,906
Capitalized debt COSES . ... ... oo 4,679 6,953
Investment in limited partnerships .......... ... 2,444 3,871
Total deferred tax liabilities 236,339 241,011
Net deferred tax liabilities ~ $166,669 $176,652

Differences between the Company’s effective tax rate and the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate are explained as follows:

2001 2000 1999

U.S. federal statutory income taxrate . ......oovvevinninnneinne... 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State and local taxes, net of federal benefit ......................... 2.7 2.6 33
(84 1= 0 o U= (O 0.8 0.9 0.2

38.5% 38.5% 38.5%

ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREKENSIVE LOSS

The components of comprehensive income that relate to the Company are net earnings, foreign currency translation adjust-
ments, minimum pension liability adjustments and as of January 1, 2001, with the adoption of SFAS No. 133, the change in the
fair value of derivatives designated as effective cash flow hedges, all of which are presented in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Stockholders’ Equity. Changes in accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income are recorded directly to stock-
holders’ equity and do not affect the net earnings or cash flows of the Company.
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ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS, continued
Accumulated other comprehensive loss consists of the following components, net of taxes:

Total
Foreign Mimimum Fair Value of Accumulated
Currency Pension Derivative Other
Translation Liability Instruments Comprehensive
Adjustment Adjustment Adjustment Income (Loss)
Balance at December 31,1998 ................ $(1,738) $(16,682) $ - $(18,420)
Net change fortheyear .................... (743) 6,886 - 6,143
Balance at December 31,1999 ................ (2,481) (9,796) - (12,277)
Netchangefortheyear .................... (66) (1,263) - (1,329)
Balance at December 31,2000 ................ (2,547) (11,059) - (13,606)
Cumulative effect of accounting change —
SFASNO.133 ..o - - (374) (374)
Net change fortheyear .................... (933) (2,343) (1,000) (4,278)
Balance at December 31,2001 ................ $(3,480) $(13,402) $(1,374) $(18,258)

The net change for the year in foreign currency translation adjustment is reflected net of tax benefits of $503, $36 and $400 in 2001,
2000 and 1999, respectively. The net change for the year in minimum pension liability adjustment is reflected net of tax benefits
{expense) of $1,261, $680 and $(3,708) in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The net change for the year in the cumulative effect
of accounting change (for adoption of SFAS No. 133) and the fair value of derivative instruments is reflected net of tax benefits
totaling $740 in 2001.

ADVERTISING COSTS

The Company expenses the production costs of advertising in the period in which they are incurred. Advertising expenses were
$75 million in 2001, $70.7 million in 2000 and $80.3 million in 1999. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, $4.5 million and $4.1 million,
respectively, of advertising related costs are included in prepaid expenses and other current assets.

INTEREST, NET

2001 2000 1999

Interestexpenseondebt . ... .. i $67,141 $48,113 $15,669
Interest income from cash equivalents and restricted deposits ....... (32,489) (13,128} (1,155)
Capitalized INterest ........oiivir ittt it aeas (912) (697) 979)
$33,760 $34,288 $13,535

EARNINGS PER SHARE
The following table presents the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

2001 2000 1999
Numerator:

INETEAITHINES « + o v et vttt ettt ettt et e e $491,602 $441,886 $469,293
Denominator: ‘

Denominator for basic earnings per
share — weighted-averageshares ............................. 164,250 163,181 174,355
Dilutive effect of employee stock options ........................ 1,432 325 759
Denominator for diluted earnings pershare ...................... 185,682 163,506 175,114
Basicearningspershare .......... .. ... . oo, $2.99 $2.71 $2.69
Diluted earnings pershare ......... .. ... o o $2.97 $2.70 $2.68

Options to purchase .2 million shares, 12.8 million shares and 12.1 million shares of common stock, outstanding as of
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because
their exercise prices were greater than the average market price of the common shares and, therefore, would be antidilutive.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company’s reportable segments are Smokeless Tabacco and Wine. Through its subsidiaries, the Company operates pre-
dominantly in the tobacco industry as a manufacturer and marketer of moist smokeless tobacco products and also produces and
markets premium wines. Those business units that do not meet quantitative reportable thresholds are included in the all other
category. This category is comprised of the international operations, which market moist smokeless tobacco products in select
markets, and cigar operations, which manufacture and market premium cigars.

Smokeless Tobacco segment sales are principally to a large number of wholesalers and chain stores which are widely dispersed
throughoutthe United States. Over the past three years, net sales to one customer averaged approximately 22.1 percent of annual
Smokeless Tobacco segment net sales.

Over the past three years, net sales to two customers averaged approximately 39.2 percent of annual Wine segment net sales.

The Company operates primarily in the United States. Foreign operations and export sales are not significant. Net sales and
operating profit are reflected net of intersegment sales and profits.

Operating profit is net sales less aperating expenses and an allocation of corporate expenses. Operating results for all other
operations included a write-down of cigar inventory in 2000. Corporate assets consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents and
other long-term investments. Smokeless Tobacco segment assets in 2001 and 2000 include the restricted deposits for the antitrust
litigation. Corporate capital expenditures and depreciation expense are net of amounts which have been allocated to each
reportable segment and all other operations for purposes of reporting operating profit and identifiable assets. Interest, net and
income taxes are not reported by segment since they are excluded from the measure of segment performance reviewed by man-
agement. Consolidated Segment Information appears on page 23.

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth Year
2001
Netsales .. oouuret i e $382,965 $422,194 $417,790 $447,366 $1,670,315
Grossprofit ....... ... 302,176 336,520 327,682 354,356 1,320,734
Netearnings ...........cciiiiiiiiiiiiieen.. 108,007 121,668 124,222 137,705 491,602
Basic earningspershare ................ .ol .66 74 76 83 2.99
Diluted earnings pershare ........................... .66 74 .75 .82 2.97
Dividends pershare ..., 46 .46 .46 46 1.84
Market price per share:
High .. oo 32.70 31.45 33.95 36.00 36.00
Low o 23.38 26.93 27.40 32.50 23.38
2000
Netsales . ... $368,295 $392,041 $389,862 $397,446 $1,547,644
Gross profit ....... ... 292,924 313,200 306,689 304,752 1,217,565
Netearnings ...ttt 101,964 112,247 112,498 115,177 441,886
Basic earningspershare ................ ... o ol .62 .69 .69 71 2.71
Diluted earnings pershare ........................... .62 .69 .69 .70 2.70
Dividends pershare ..............ccoiiiiiiieen... 44 44 44 44 1.76
Market price per share:
High... ..o 27.00 17.54 24.13 28.88 28.88
Low 13.94 14.56 13.88 22.38 13.88

The fourth quarter and full year of 2001 include the effect of an extra shipping day in the Smokeless Tobacco segment, which resulted in an increase in
basic and diluted earnings per share of 8 cents compared to the corresponding 2000 periods.

The Company’s common shares trade on the New York Stock Exchange and the Pacific Exchange, ticker symbol — UST. The
number of stockholders of record at December 31, 2001 was 7,816.
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CONTINGENCIES

The Company has been named in certain health care cost reimbursement/third party recoupment/class action litigation against
the major domestic cigarette companies and others seeking damages and other relief. The complaints in these cases on their face
predominantly relate to the usage of cigarettes; within that context, certain complaints contain a few allegations relating specifi-
cally to smokeless tobacco products. These actions are in varying stages of pretrial activities.

The Company believes these pending litigation matters will not result in any material liability for a number of reasons, includ-
ing the fact that the Company has had only limited involvement with cigarettes and the Company’s current percentage of total
tobacco industry sales is relatively small. Prior to 1986, the Company manufactured some cigarette products which had a de minimis
market share. From May 1, 1982 to August 1, 1994, the Company distributed a small volume of imported cigarettes and is indem-
nified against claims relating to those products.

The Company is named in an action in Illinois brought by an individual plaintiff and purporting to state a class action “on
behalf of himself and all other persons similarly situated” alleging that the Company “manipulates the nicotine levels and absorp-
tion rates” in its smokeless tobacco products and seeking to recover monetary damages “in an amount not less than the purchase
price” of the Company’s smokeless tobacco products and certain other relief. The purported class excludes all persons who claim
any personal injury as a result of using the Company’s smokeless tobacco products.

The Company is also named in certain actions in West Virginia brought on behalf of individual plaintiffs against cigarette man-
ufacturers, smokeless tobacco manufacturers, and other organizations seeking damages and other relief in connection with
injuries allegedly sustained as a result of tobacco usage, including smokeless tobacco products. Included among the plaintiffs are
six individuals alleging use of the Company’s smokeless tobacco products and alleging the types of injuries claimed to be associ-
ated with the use of smokeless tobacco products; five of the six individuals also allege the use of other tobacco products.

The Company has been named in an action in Florida by an individual plaintiff and his spouse seeking damages and other
relief for personal injuries, including “cancer of the tongue,” allegedly sustained by plaintiff as a result of his use of the Company’s
smokeless tobacco products.

The Company believes, and has been so advised by counsel handling these cases, that it has a number of meritorious defenses
to all such pending litigation. Except as to the Company’s willingness to consider alternative solutions for resolving certain regu-
latory and litigation issues, all such cases are, and will continue to be, vigorously defended. The Company believes that the ulti-
mate outcome of all such pending litigation will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of the
Company, but may have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial results for a particular reporting period in
which resolved.

On March 28, 2000, a Kentucky jury rendered a verdict against the Company, awarding $350 million in compensatory dam-
ages to Conwood Company, L.P., for its claims under federal antitrust laws that the Company had engaged in exclusionary and
anticompetitive conduct in the marketing and promotion of moist smokeless tobacco products. The verdict, when entered as a
judgment, was subject to trebling under federal antitrust laws to $1.05 billion plus interest and other costs. On September 11,
2000, the Company filed its notice of appeal to the United States Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit from the final and inter-
locutory orders entered by the District Court in connection with this litigation. The appeal was heard by the United States Court
of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit on November 27, 2001. To date, the court has not ruled. On October 10, 2000, the Company satis-
fied the $500 million bonding requirement imposed by the District Court (see Restricted Deposits note). The Company believes
that the evidence presented at trial was insufficient to support the jury verdict and, as a result, believes that, while there can be
no assurances, the judgment should ultimately be reversed on appeal. The Company is not presently able to reasonably estimate
the amount of damages, if any, which may be ultimately imposed and, accordingly, no charge relating to the judgment is reflected
in the Company’s financial statements. While the Company believes that the judgment should ultimately be reversed, if the
adverse judgment is sustained after all appeals, satisfaction of the judgment is likely to have a material adverse effect on the
Company's consolidated financial results for a particular year, but is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial position.

The Company has been named in three purported class actions filed in state court in Tennessee, New Mexico and West
Virginia on behalf of putative class members who were indirect purchasers of the Company’s smokeless tobacco products in
those states during the period April 1996 through March 28, 2000 {Tennessee and New Mexico) and through December 31, 2000
(West Virginia), alleging that the Company has violated the antitrust laws, unfair or deceptive trade practices statutes and the
common law of those states. The plaintiffs seek to recover compensatory and statutory damages in an amount not to exceed
$74,000 after trebling per putative class member, and certain other relief. These actions are similar in all material respects.

The Company has also been named in a purported class action (reported previously as an individual action and a purported
class action and then consolidated on January 8, 2001), filed in United States District Court for the District of Columbia by whole-
salers/distributors of the Company’s smokeless tobacco products. Plaintiffs aliege that the Company engaged in conduct that vio-
lates the federal antitrust laws, including Sections 1 and 2 of tlre Sherman Act and Section 3 of the Clayton Act, and that the
Company engaged in this conduct unilaterally and in concert with “its co-conspirators.” Plaintiffs seek to recover unspecified
statutory damages, before trebling, and certain equitable and other relief.

Each of the foregoing actions is derived directly from the Conwood litigation and therefore will need to overcome the same
issues raised by the Company in its post-trial motions and on appeal. Even if Conwood were ultimately to prevail on issues which
the Company is challenging on appeal, the plaintiffs in each of these actions will still need to establish additional elements before
liability can be imposed upon the Company. The Company believes that it has meritorious defenses in this regard, and that the
ultimate outcome of these purported class actions will not have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial position,
although if plaintiffs were to prevail, these actions could have a material impact on its consclidated financial results for a partic-
ular reporting period in which resolved.
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CONTINGENCIES, continued

On February 14, 2002, in a state court action in Miami, Florida involving a commercial dispute alleging breach of contract and
other claims in connection with the sale of cigars, a jury rendered a verdict against U.S. Cigar Sales, Inc. and other affiliated com-
panies of the Company, awarding $43 million in compensatory and punitive damages to the plaintiff, a former distributor. The
Company intends to pursue post-trial remedies, and in the event the verdict is not vacated or a new trial ordered, the Company
intends to appeal to the Florida District Court of Appeal.

The Company believes, and has been so advised by counsel handling the case, that the evidence submitted at trial and the
applicable law were insufficient to support the jury’s verdict and, as a result, the Company believes that, while there can be no
assurances, the verdict should ultimately be substantially reduced or reversed by the trial judge or on appeal. While the Company
believes that the verdict should ultimately be substantially reduced or reversed, if the adverse verdict is sustained after all appeals,
satisfaction of the verdict is likely to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial results for a particu-
lar reporting period in which resolved, but it is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial position.

CTHER MATTERS

In November 1998, the Company entered into the Smokeless Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement (the “Settlement
Agreement”) with the attorneys general of various states and U.S. territories to resolve the remaining health care cost reimburse-
ment cases initiated against the Company. The Settlement Agreement required the Company to adopt various marketing and
advertising restrictions and make payments expected to total $100 million, plus a minimum 3 percent inflationary adjustment per
annum, over 10 years for programs to reduce youth usage of tobacco and combat youth substance abuse and for enforcement
purposes.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

To the Directors and Stockholders
UST Inc. :
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is composed of four independent directors and is responsible for overseeing the
Company'’s financial reporting process.

The Committee held five meetings during the year which were attended by management, the internal auditors and the
independent auditors. Items covered in these meetings included discussions of current accounting and financial reporting
matters, results of audit examinations and the Company’s system of internal control relating to the quarterly and annual
financial reporting process. The Committee discussed and approved the plan of audit coverage presented by the internal auditors and
independent auditors. The meetings facilitate communication between these groups and provide the internal auditors and
independent auditors an opportunity to meet privately with the Committee. ‘

The Audit Committee assessed the independence of the independent auditors through inquiry and a review of their audit and
nonaudit services and related fees. The Committee recommended its selection of the Company’s independent auditors for 2001
to the Board of Directors, which was approved by stockholders.

Edward H. DeHority, Jr.
Audit Committee Chairman
February 21, 2002

REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP,
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Directors and Stockholders

UST Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position of UST Inc. as of December 31, 2001 and 2000,
and the related consolidated statements of earnings, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2001. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by man-
agement, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of UST Inc. at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States.

Stamford, Connecticut
February 7, 2002




462

UST CONSOLIDATED SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA — ELEVEN YEARS

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

2001 2000 1999
SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS for the year ended December 31
NetSales ...t e e e $1,670,315 $1,547,644 $1,512,331
Cost of products sold (includes excisetaxes) ................... 349,581 330,079 304,275
Selling, advertising and administrative expenses ................ 487,706 464,842 431,578
Operating inCoOMIE . ... ..ottt 833,028 752,723 776,478
Other expense (income):
Interest, net ... ... e e s 33,760 34,288 13,535
Gain on disposal of productline .............. .. .. .. .l - - -
Earnings before income taxes and cumulative
effect of accountingchanges ............... ... ...l 799,268 718,435 762,943
INCOmMEtaxes ..o e e e e 307,666 276,549 293,650
Earnings before cumulative effect of accounting changes ........ 491,602 441,886 469,293
Cumulative effect of accounting changes
{(net of income tax benefit) ................. ... ... - - -
Netearnings ........oivuiueruiniinnniietrieiiniinnannss $491,602 $441,886 $469,293
PER SHARE DATA
Basic earnings per share before cumulative effect of
accountingchanges ............ooviiiiiiiiiien i $2.99 $2.71 $2.69
Basic earningspershare .............. il i 2.99 2.71 2.69
Diluted earnings per share before cumulative effect of
accountingchanges ... 2.97 2.70 2.68
Diluted earnings pershare .............. oo 2.97 2.70 2.68
Dividends pershare ..............o i 1.84 1.76 1.68
Market price per share:
High . oo 36.00 28.88 34.94
LW L e e e e e 23.38 13.88 24.06
FINANCIAL CONDITION at December 31
(0T (=) 0| 2 13- - O $891,959 $691,405 $580,024
Current liabilities ... ..ot 222,462 172,872 261,327
Workingcapital ............. oo i 869,437 518,533 318,697
Ratio of current assets to current liabilities ..................... 4:1 4:1 221
TOtal ASSBES ..ttt t ittt e e 2,011,702 1,646,399 1,015,648
Long-termdebt ...... ... .. o 862,575 865,875 411,000
Total debt ...ttt e e e 865,875 869,175 481,965
Stockholders’ equity .. ......ovoiee e e 581,062 270,572 200,804
OTHER DATA
Stock repurchased ........... ... $ - $97,470 $465,966
Dividendspaid ......... ... $303,277 $287,009 $291,966
Dividends paid as a percentage of netearnings ................. 61.7% 65.0% 62.2%
Returnonnetsales ...........ccoiiiiiiin it 29.4% 28.6% 31.0%
Returnonaverage assets .........ovviiiiiiiiiiinnnnnnenns 26.9% 33.2% 48.7%
Return on average stockholders’ equity ........................ 115.4% 187.5% 140.3%
Average number of shares (in thousands) —basic .............. 164,250 163,181 174,355
Average number of shares (in thousands) — diluted............. 165,682 163,506 175,114

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

All share data has been adjusted to reflect the two-for-one stock split distributed on January 27, 1992.
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1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991
$1,423,246  $1,401,718  $1,371,705  $1,305796  $1,203951  $1,097,533 $1,032,172 $898,436
283,516 291,942 272,756 262,203 251,944 246,445 256,796 227,546
407,452 398,468 348,059 335,824 311,279 286,336 274,613 247,085
732,278 711,308 750,890 707,769 640,728 564,752 500,763 423,805
2,187) 7,451 6,364 3,179 92 (2,004) (1,866) (2,279)

- ~ - - - (35,029) - -
734,465 703,857 744,526 704,590 640,636 601,785 502,629 426,084
279,186 264,719 280,527 274,830 253,110 232,893 190,071 160,179
455,279 439,138 463,999 429,760 387,526 368,892 312,558 265,905
- - - - - 19,846 - -
$455,279 $439,138 $463,999 $429,760 $387,526 $349,046 $312,558 $265,905
$2.45 $2.39 $2.48 $2.21 $1.92 $1.77 $1.49 $1.26
245 2.39 2.48 2.21 1.92 1.67 1.49 1.26
2.44 2.37 2.44 217 1.88 1.73 1.43 1.20
244 2.37 2.44 217 1.88 1.64 1.43 1.20

1.62 1.62 1.48 1.30 1.12 96 80 66
36.88 36.94 35.88 36.00 31.50 32.75 35.38 33.88
24.56 25.50 28.25 26.63 23.63 24.38 25.38 16.38
$507,213 $441,844 $450,570 $425,555 $381,937 $334,996 $330,208 $305,430
197,316 166,519 306,553 280,723 160,755 106,642 81,208 95,455
309,897 275,325 144,017 144,832 221,182 228,354 249,000 209,975
2.6:1 2.7:1 1.5:1 1.5:1 2.4:1 3.1:1 4.1:1 3.2:1
913,319 826,363 806,577 783,976 741,236 706,195 673,965 656,513
100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 125,000 40,000 - -
100,000 110,000 250,000 200,000 125,000 40,000 - 1,250
468,293 436,795 281,206 292,781 361,669 462,972 516,606 483,875
$151,617 $45,719 $237,759 $274,783 $298,843 $236,704 $212,581 $184,424
$301,145 $298,059 $277,302 $252,388 $225,715 $199,725 $167,951 $139,670
66.1% 67.9% 59.8% 58.7% 58.2% 57.2% 53.7% 52.5%
32.0% 31.3% 33.8% 32.9% 32.2% 31.8% 30.3% 29.6%
52.3% 53.8% 58.3% 56.4% 53.5% 50.6% 47.0% 41.6%
100.6% 122.3% 161.7% 131.3% 94.0% 71.3% 62.5% 55.6%
185,544 183,931 187,386 194,374 201,995 208,469 209,803 211,603
186,880 185,602 190,067 197,613 205,699 213,412 218,674 221,458
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UST CORPORATE DATA

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

100 West Putnam Avenue
Greenwich, Connecticut 06830
Tel. No. (203) 661-1100

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

U.S. Smokeless
Tobacco Company
Greenwich, Connecticut

U.S. Smokeless

Tobacco Manufacturing
Limited Partnership
Nashville, Tennessee

Principal Facilities
Nashville, Tennessee
Franklin Park, Illinois
Hopkinsville, Kentucky

U.S. Smokeless
Tobacco Brands Inc.
Greenwich, Connecticut

International Wine
& Spirits Ltd.
Greenwich, Connecticut

Stimson Lane Ltd.
Woodinville, Washington

Principal Facilities
Paterson, Washington
Woaodinville, Washington

ANNUAL MEETING

Stockholders are cordially invited to
attend the Company’s Annual
Meeting, which will be held at

10:00 a.m., May 7, 2002, at

Rich Forum

307 Atlantic Street

Stamford, Connecticut

FORM 10-K

Stockholders may obtain a copy of
the Company’s annual report to
the Securities and Exchange
Commission (Form 10-K) free of
charge by writing to the Secretary.

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTINGS

New York Stock Exchange
Pacific Exchange
Ticker Symbol - UST

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT
AND STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

Our plan permits stockholders to
purchase additional shares of our
common stock with all or a portion
of dividends and/or optional cash
investments of $10 to $10,000 a
month. In order to enroll in the
plan, you must first be a stock-
holder. The Company absorbs all
brokerage and bank costs connected
with such purchases. You may join
or withdraw whenever you wish.

ELECTRONIC DEPOCSIT
OF DIVIDENDS
This service allows for your dividends

to be deposited electronically into
your personal bank account.

STOCKHOLDER INQUIRIES

Registered stockholders can direct
inquiries concerning account holdings,
dividends, electronic deposit, dividend
reinvestment, stock transfer require-
ments, lost or missing certificates, or
any other administrative matters by
calling toll free: 1-800-730-4001 or
through secured Internet access at
www.gateway.equiserve.com

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

To listen to financial releases, including
quarterly earnings, dividend and press
releases, or to request printed material
via Fax, Mail or E-Mail, call 24 hours
toll free: 1-800-777-1UST.

Internet access:

www.ustinc.com

TRANSFER AGENT
AND REGISTRAR

EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
P.O. Box 43010

Providence, RI 02940-3010
wwuw.equiserve.com

EquiServe is also our dividend dis-
bursement and reinvestment agent.

LEGAL COUNSEL

Skadden, Arps, Slate,
Meagher & Flom LLP
Four Times Square
New York, NY 10036

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Ernst & Young LLP
1111 Summer Street
Stamford, CT 06905

Copenhagen, Copenhagen Long Cut,
Copenhagen Black, Skoal, Skoal Fine Cut,
Skoal Long Cut, Skoal Bandits, Red Seal, Red
Seal Fine Cut, Red Seal Long Cut Straight,
Revel, Rooster, Rooster Long Cut, Rooster
Wild Berry, Chateau Ste. Michelle, Chateau
Ste. Michelle Cold Creek, Columbia Crest,
Columbia Crest Grand Estates, Domaine Ste.
Michelle, Eroica, Northstar, Villa Mt. Eden,
Don Tomds, Don Tomds Dominican Selection,
and Astral are trademarks of UST or its sub-
sidiaries.

Design: Inc Design, incdesign.com
Printed in U.S.A. on recycled paper.




BOARD OF DIRECTARS

Edward H. DeHority, Jr.

Yincent A. Gierer, Jr.

Lowell P. Weicker, Jr.

John P. Clancey @8

Chairman,
Maersk Sealand

Edward H. DeHority, Jr. ‘"
Retired. Formerly Partner
of Ernst & Young LLP

Patricia Diaz Dennis
Senior Vice President-
Regulatory & Public Affairs,
SBC Communications Inc.

Elaine J. Eisenman, Ph.D. @©

Chairman,
Management and
Capital Partners

(1) Member of Audit Committee;

Edward H. DeHority, Jr., Chairman

Edward T. Fogarty K0

Formerly Chairman of the
Board, Chief Executive Officer

and President, Tambrands Inc.

Vincent A. Gierer, Jr.
Chairman of the Board,
Chiet Executive Officer and
President, UST

P. X. Kelley @

Partner, J. F. Lehman &
Company. Chairman,
American Battle Monuments
Commission,

Former Commandant of United

States Marine Corps

(2) Member of Compensation Committee;

Etaine J. Eisenman, Chairman
(3) Member of Nominating and

Corporate Governance Committee;

John P. Clancey, Chairman

(&) Member of Strategic Review Committee;

Vincent A, Gierer, Jr,, Chairman

Peter J. Meff ("9®
International Business
Management Consultant.
Formerly President and
Chief Executive Officer,
Rhéne-Poulenc, Inc.

Lowell P. Weicker, Jr. '@
Former Governor
of Connecticut
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